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A Message to Our Shareholders

Our Senior Management Team

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Report of Management on the Company’s Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

Consolidated Financial Statements

This report contains forward-locking statements and reflects managzment’s
current views of future economic circumstances, industry conditions. Company
performance and financial results. These forward-looking statements are subject
to a number of factors and uncertainties which could cause the Company’s

actual results and experience to materially differ from anticipated results and
expectations expressed in such forward-looking statements. A description of
certain factors which may affect operating results may be found in Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations under
the caption “Forward-Looking Information™ contained elsewhere in this report.
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7, Over the pa.sr nine asa public. r:ompargy we /mve achieved
,r-—'—'co:y)ounded annual growtli rates of 24. 1% in net income and 20.6%
in diluted earnings per share. i lf
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In many respects 2006 was a building year for Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. with an intense focus on longer-
term ofbjectives. Throughout the year we pursued a broad-based plan to lay the foundation for our Company’s
future growth and profitability. The three principal elements of this plan were our 2006 Deposit, Branching
and Corporate Growth Initiatives. While we strive to grow deposits, add branches and develop corporate

| ’ . s .
infrastructure every year, in 2006 we had an extraordinary focus on expanding our capabilities and capacity
for the future. '

We achieved a return on average assets of 1.34% and a return on average stockholders’ equity of 20.03%
in 2006. While many companies would be very pleased with these returns, they fell short of our expectations
and c;ur level of performance in recent years. Pursuing our 2006 initiatives resulted in higher interest and
overhead expense, posing a challenge to achieving significant earnings growth. The operating environment
also posed challenges as the yield curve between short-term and long-term interest rates was essentially flat
or inverted throughout the year, competition for both loans and deposits was intense, and a slowdown in
the l}ousing sector affected mortgage lending income. All these factors impacted our 2006 net income and
eamlings per share, both of which increased less than one percent compared to 2005.

One might question our decision to pursue such ambitious initiatives during a year in which interest rate,
com'petitive and economic conditions already provided many challenges. From a short-term point of view,
cons:idering only our 2006 growth in net income and earnings per share, this past year was disappointing.
On the other hand, from a longer-term perspective, we believe 2006 will ultimately be seen as one of the
most important years for our Company — a year in whlch many strategic steps were taken to position us for
the future 4

_ ln the following pages we discuss in some detail each of these 2006 initiatives and why we believe they
aref,important for our Company'’s future. We also discuss our 2006 results and some of our plans, goals and
expectations for the future.
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The 2006 Deposit Initiative

Throughout most of 2005 we pursued a relatively defensive deposit strategy, but in early 200? we shifted
to a more aggressive strategy. For several reasons we felt 2006 was the rlght time to grow and dlver51fy our
deposit sources. This shift in deposit'strategy included repricing a number of| deposit products and increasing
marketing expenditures. These steps were intended to accelerate growth in b(:)th our number of deposit
accounts and deposit volume. Our 2006 Deposit Initiative also included incr easim'g and diversifyinig

wholesale deposit customers and products, in both CD and non-CD accounts, to provide added depth to
our funding capabilities.

. Our deposits grew a record $453 million, or 28.5%, in 2006 after growing $212 million, or 15. :’?% in
2005 We aiso had record growth in our number of deposit accounts, which mcrealsed 85% more m 2006
oo than in 2005, Deposit growth came from both our establlshed

i " markets and the four new m.irkets\ in which we expanded
in 2006. The new deposit relqtlpnsolps should prov1i:le a
multitude of future sales opportunities. Our 2006 deposit

E1 growth also helped us reduce our ]evel of Federal Home Loan
Bank and fed funds borrowmz's glvmg us more ﬂexnblllty in
the future management of our ll)alall'lce sheet. The prllce for
accomplishing these favorable results was higher interest
and marketing expense in 2006.

;| Over the past nine years,
1l our deposits have grown at
, . a compounded annual rate
B4 of 24.0%.

Our 2006 deposit growth incireased our combined| market
share in the 16 counties in which we have operated lsince
June 30, 2003. Our market sh:‘ir{e' in these counties has
increased from 6.51% as of]unflz 301 2003, to 7.91%]|at ]une
30, 2004, 8.76% at June 30, 2005 and 9.51% at June 30,
2006. Our overall Arkansas dep051t market share* has
increased from 2.48% at June ! SO\ 2003 to 3.09% at ]une 30,
4 2004, 3.46% at June 30, 2005, and 4 13% at June 30 2000.

'f These gams were consistent wn:h our longer-term goals and
R A L L * expectations for growth in these markets
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Because our 2006 Deposit lmtlatlve produced record results, we expect to pursue a moderately less
aggressive approach to deposit marketing and pricing in many of our markets |n|200l7. This ad;ustme}n in
strategy should contribute to the a‘chievetnent of our goal of stabilizing, and then imp'roving, net interest
margin in 2007 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2006. It should also help reiducel marketing expense
in 2007. One of our goals for 2007 is to reduce marketing expense enough to offset the cost of the newly

. . . . . N
adopted FDIC insurance premiums which-are expected to impact non-interest expense after the first quarter

of 2007. ‘ :
Of course every year we want to grow both our volume of deposits and our number of deposit accounts.

Gathering new deposits will once again be a critical part of our 2007 business plan, but we expect to dlo S0
in 2007 without the same intensity of deposit pricing and the same level of marketmg expense as in 2006.
*FDIC market share data. '
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The 2006 Branching Initiative

urmg 2006 we aggresswely expanded our number of facilities and markets. Qur 2006 Branching
Initiative resulted in the addition of a record 11 new banking offices, plus the relocation of a temporary
banking office to a new facility, the replacement of one of our oldest banking offices with a new facility
and the es'tablishment of a loan production office in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Not only did we open a record number of new offices in 2006, but except for the replacement office in
Ozark, Arkansas all our new banking offices were opened in four important new markets. We believe all
four are hlgh quality markets providing excellent opportunities for future growth and profitability.

The majorlty of our 2006 expansion occurred in Benton and Washington counties in northwest
Arkansas, part of one of the fastest growing metropolitan statistical areas in the U.S. These two counties
are home,| to several Fortune 500 companies, including Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., Tyson Foods, Inc. and ]. B.
Hunt 'ﬁ'alhsport Services. Inc. They are also Arkansas’ second and third largest counties in terms of bank
deposits.iIn 2005 we opened our first offices there consisting of our first permanent banking office, a
temporary banking office and a loan production office. By year-end 2006 we had eight permanent banking
offices serving these two counties. We expect to add additional offices in these counties in 2007 and
ultimateII'y increase our total in the two counties to approximately 14 offices. As one of Arkansas’ largest
and fastest growing banking markets, these counties represent a particularly important element in our plan
for further growth in Arkansas.

In 2006 we opened our first two banking offices in Hot Springs, Arkansas, the largest city in Garland
County. Garland is Arkansas’ sixth largest county in bank deposits. It is a natural extension of our existing
footprmt in central Arkansas. We expect to add two additional Hot Springs offices in the future.

ot BN TR R S e LT KT

The I-Texarkana market (both Bowie County,
Texas and Miller County, Arkansas) is another
important new market in which we expanded in
2006. We opened our first permanent office in
Texark:ana, Texas in December 2005. In 2006 we 8
added one additional office on each side of the state
line, giving us a total of three Texarkana offices.

Frisco is a rapidly growing city in Collin County, | Lo
Texas, part of the metro-Dallas area. We opened |
our first temporary banking office in Frisco in 2004.}
This office is still operating and in 2006 we added
our ﬁl}st permanent Frisco banking office. In 2007, we expect to replace the present temporary ofﬁce ‘with a
new permanent facility. These two permanent offices will be our first significant retail banking effort in the
metro-Dallas area. We believe this market has great potential and expect it to be an important focus of our
futur,ia expansion efforts.

O'f course these new offices provided more financial burden than benefit in 2006. All new offices require
a period of time to generate a sufficient volume of business to cover their overhead. Opening such a large
number of new offices in 2006 contributed to the large increase in our non-interest expense for the year.
Also! because of the lower net interest margin achieved in 2006, these offices are taking somewhat longer
to adhieye a profitable level of operation than would be the case in a more favorable margin environment.
However, we expect each one of these offices will continue to grow and be an important contributor to
future profitability.




During the fourth quarter of 2006, we also filed an application for a new Oklahoma bank subsndlary to be
headquartered in Tulsa. Assuming: this application is approved, we expect to cc;mbme our ex1st1ng Oklahoma
loan production office with this new charter and engage in full-service bankmgl operations there during
2007. Because Oklahoma and North Carolina permit reciprocal interstate bfanching, we ultimately expect to
use this new Oklahoma subsidiary to expand our North Carolina loan proditction office to a full service
banking operation. ' '

We expect to continue our growth and de nove branching strategy in 2007, but at a much slower pace.
We currently plan to replace our temporary office in Frisco, Texas with a p'ex'jmaxllent facility and add
approximately five new banking offices during 2007. One of these new fatiiities is expected to replace our
current Tulsa loan production office,

Fifty-two percent of our offices have been added in the last four years, providing us substantial capacity
for growth. As a result we believe we can accomplish our future growth goals while slowing our rate of new
office openings in 2007. Qur slower rate of office additions in 2007 should help us achieve our goal of
decelerating our growth rate of non-interest expense in 2007 compared to .'2(')06.l

The 2006 Corporate Growth Initiative

During 2006 we undertook a broad range of actions intended to build our)staff and other corporate
infrastructure to support growth plans for years to come. Staff additions mcluded\ adding more production
staff such as loan officers, mortgage lenders and private bankers at existing ofﬁces adding a number of
corporate staff members; and giving appropriate salary increases to help retam exnstmg staff and develop
our next generation of supervisors and managers. Corporate infrastructure 1mprovemems mcludedI
development and implementation of many new or enhanced policies, procedures and processes related
to risk management and other business operations. Because of these changes' we think we are a better
company with more capabllltles and capacity for future growth and proﬁtablhty

Every year we expect to add to our production and corporate staff and 1mpr0\lre our policies, procedures and
processes, but we do not expect such efforts in 2007 tobe as .
costly as those that collectively comprised our 2006 Corporate‘_slﬂ- Loans &' Leases.(.'\-mlio.lh
Growth Initiative. This should help us achieve our goal of | Over the past nine years, our
decelerating our rate of growth of non-interest expense "4 loans and leases have grown

WY at a compounded annual rate
in 2007. e of 22.2%.

Loan and Lease Growth

Our ability to generate a good volume of quality loans
and leases has been one of the hallmarks of our Company.
Our lenders and lease originators continued their excellent
performance in 2006, increasing loans and leases by a record
$307 million, resulting in a growth rate of 22.4%. That was
right in the middle of our high teens to mid-twenties
percentage guidance range.

We expect continued good loan and lease growth in 2007, ¥
both from lenders in our new markets {(a.result of our 2006
Branching Initiative) and from existing and new lenders in
our more established markets. As part of our 2006 Corporate
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Growth Initiative, we hired new lending teams to originate loans to professional and executive customers and to
commermal and industrial customers. These actions are intended to help us both grow and diversify our loan
and lease Iportfoho

The experience and capabilities of our lending and leasing teams were particularly important in the
intensely rcompetitive environment we encountered in 2006. Our lenders and lease originators achieved
excellent growth while striving to maintain appropriate pricing and credit discipline. Although we continued
to be VCI‘)} competitive inour loan and lease pricing in"2006, we elected not to originate many loans and
leases at rates which did not, in our view, provide at least a minimally acceptable return for the work and
risks involved. We also maintained our established credit standards, even when some competitors seemed
to be mo}e liberal in their credit terms. Qur discipline in pricing and credit standards cost us some business
in 2006, ibut our loan and lease teams still achieved excellent growth.

I
Asset Quality

|
Smce the inception of our growth and de novo branching strategy in 1994, one of our keys to success has
been a strong commitment to asset quality. This focus and the results of our efforts were evident in our

ratios of nonperforming loans and leases, nonperforming
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assets and past due loans and leases which were excellent

throughout 2006. Our year-end 2006 ratio of nonperforming ..
¥4 compared_favorably with the ratio for all

loans and leases to total loans and leases was 0.34%, and
our yea:r-end ratio of nonperforming assets to total assets
was O'2i4%' Our year-end 2006 ratio of loans and leases
past due thirty days or more, including past due nonaccrual
loans and leases, as a percentage of total loans and leases
was ]l]St 0.60%.

In our opinion the ultlma[e measure of asset quality is
net loan and lease charge-offs. In 2006 our net loan and
lease charge -offs were just 0.12% of average outstanding
loans Iand leases. Our net charge-off ratio has consistently
compared favorably with the ratio for all FDIC insured
institutions as a group.

R N e b et it T e

Charge-Off Ratios |

Our net charge-off ratio has consistently

FDIC insured institutions as a group.
‘ FDIC Insured Financial Institutions
[l Back of the Ozarks, Inc.
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Nonperformmg Loans & Nonqerforming Assets/
LeaseslTolaI Loans & Leases Total Assets

03!!:
I

12797 12/98 12793 12/00 12401 12/02 12/03 J2704 §2/05 12/06 | 12199 2400 ] 24 2102 2/ 12/97 12/98 12/ 2/00,

I
2/

Our ratios qf nonpejonmng Ioans and leases, nonpeﬁormmg assets and past due loans and leases were

excellent throughout 20006.

Liéasés Past Due 30 Days
Or More/Total Loans & Leases

| 12/97 12/98 12799 12/00 12001 12/03 12/03 17/04 12705 12/06 IZIOS 12ID6
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In 2006 our allowance for loan and lease losses increased $0.7 million tlo $1!7 7 million and was 1.06%
of our year-end total loans and leases. This increase in the allowance was primarily due to the excellent loan
and lease growth achieved durmg the year. At year-end 2006 our allowarice for loan and lease losses

equaled 310% of total nonperformmg loans and leases.

Net Interest Income and Net It_zterest Margin

Net interest income, or “spread” income as it is
frequently called, continued to be our primary revenue
source in 2006 accounting for 75.3% of total revenue.
Net interest income increased only 3.1% in 2006
compared to 2005. The benefit of our 23.4% growth
in average earning assets, primarily loans and leases,
was substantially offset by the 69 basis point reduction
in net interest margin to 3.49% in 2006 compared to
4.18% in 2005.

Maximizing net interest income, while maintaining
an acceptable net interest margin, is one of our
important goals, but the very challenging margin
environment throughout 2006 kept us from achieving
this goal. This was primarily due to three factors.

The first two were external, being the relatively flat
to inverted yield curve and the intense competition for

both loans and deposits during 2006. These two factors,

combined with our decision to more aggressively price
a number of deposit products, put considerably more
pressure on our 2006 net interest margin than we had
originally expected.

As we have already mentioned, one of the strengths
of our Company has been our ability to generate good
growth in earning assets, primarily loans and leases.
Coming into 2006, we had achieved 19 consecutive
quarters of record net interest income. In 2006 we
achieved record net interest income in only one quarter.
One of our goals for 2007 is to improve net interest
income both by growing earning assets and stabilizing,
and ultimately improving, our net interest margin.

Non-Interest Income

In 2006 our total non-interest income was a record
$23.2 million, an increase of 20.7% compared to $19.3
million in 2005.

Service charges on deposit accounts were our largest
source of non-interest income in 2006, as has been the
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One qf our 2007 gaals is to
improve net mterest income
both by growing earning
assets and stabi Itzmg,

and ulamate{y 1

rmprovmg our net
interest margm
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over the pa:.t nine years
our non- mterest income
-has grown at a
compounded annual
rate of 25.99%) \
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Income_from servrce
charges on deposit \

accounts has grown\at
a compounded annual
rate of 30.1% over
the past nine years.




case in recf:ent years. This category of income increased
3.5% to an annual record of $10.2 million in 2006

implemented changes in our processes affecting B
deposit account service charges which contributed to }
record fO!I,ll‘th quarter results in this income category. i

Because of these resuits, we are optimistic that 2007
deposit a'ccount service charge income will improve
nicely as[I compared to 2006.

Mortg'age lending income is another important
source of non-interest income, but in 2006 it declined
3.8% to $2 9 million compared to $3.0 million in 2005.
Our goal in 2006 was to improve our mortgage lending
income,‘ despite the tougher housing market conditions,
by gaining market share in existing markets and
beginning to capture share in newer markets. While
we hadjsome success in both respects, we were not
able to 'generate enough market share gains to fully -
offset the effects of a generally slower mortgage
market In 2006 we expanded our team of mortgage
lenders_ as part of our Corporate Growth Initiative.
Achieving increased production from these new

recruit? is an important part of our plan to improve
our market share in 2007.

Trust is also an important source of non-interest
incom;ﬂ:. we have said for some time this is an area
of opportunity for us to grow nen-interest income,
so we,were pleased to see our trust income grow by
16.4% to a record $1.9 million in 2006 compared to
$1.7 million in 2005. We believe trust income will
contilllue to contribute to growth in non-interest
income in 2007.

Net gains from sales of investment securities
and other assets were $3.8 million in 2006 compared
to $0 8 million in 2005. Our investment securities
portfollo has traditionally been both a strong
contlributor to interest income and a source of
collateral for customer repurchase agreements and
trust and public funds deposits. In 2006 gains from
salels of investment securities also provided a
mgmﬁcant contribution to non-interest income.

compared to $9.9 million in 2005. In December we =t R the past nine years,

s

: ﬁ

mortgage lending income
has grown at a
compounded annual

A rate of 20.0%.

Over the past nine years,
trust income has grown
at a compounded
annual rate

of 24.3%.
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¢l Efficiency Ratio Il. |
4 Our Deposit, Branching and Corporate

Growth Initiatives were significant factors in
the increase in our 2006 efficiency ratio.

5&9% 56.2% 99.1%
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A Building Year

In past years we have carefully maintained our balance between achieving short-term earnmgs goals and
investing for longer-term results. In 2006 much of our focus was on longer—tenln objectives. Thi$ shift in
focus, along with the challenging operatmg environment, allowed us to ac hieve only a slight improvement
in earnings in 2006.

There were financial highlights in 2006 including record growth in loans and leases, record growth in
both the number and volume of deposits and record income from deposit : «lCCOUIllt service charges and trust.
However, in the final analysis, 2006 should be viewed as the year in which | we put in place critical
infrastructure for future growth and profitability.

In 2007 we will once again strive to achieve a careful balance between s hort-term and long-term
objectives. With the initiatives of 2006 accomplished, we can build on that foundatlon and return our focus
to accelerating our rate of revenue growth and decelerating our rate of over head growth

|
As substantial shareholders ourselves, creating shareholder value is an nttportant goal to us. We believe
our efforts in 2006 will contribute to-meaningful future earnings growth and provide the foundation for
creation of substantial value for our shareholders

George Gleason Mark Ross
Chairman and Chi.efExecua've Qﬂ‘icer Vice Chairman, Preszdenr ana{ Chief Operating Officer

Net Income {Miliions)
[JEarnings Per Share wiwe
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Growth and De Novo Branching

In 1994 we launched our growth and de novo branching strategy by opening the first of our de novo
branches We have opened new offices in each of the last twelve years and we have grown from just five
original offices to 67 banking offices and three loan production offices at year-end 2006.

This growth and de novo branching strategy has given us a constant progression of new offices and
more imﬁortant]y, has delivered great growth. Over that twelve-year period, we have achieved compounded
annual growth rates of 25.2% for loans and leases, 24.4% for deposits and 25.5% for total assets. And most
importaﬁtly. over the last twelve years, we have achieved compounded annual growth rates of 21.9% for
net incor'ne and 18.4% for diluted earnings per share. We believe we have lived up to our reputation as a
growth company founded on sound banking practices.

Growth and Expansion — Longer Term

If weI complete our 2007 expansion plans as expected, we will have 66 Arkansas banking offices in
20 countles five Texas banking offices, and one Oklahoma banking office by year-end 2007. Based on
“our mo.?t recent analysis, we believe we can achieve an “optimal market share” in Arkansas by opening
approx1|mately eight additional offices after 2007. We expect these offices will be completed in 2008
and 20?9.

® Cu'rrent Offices
® Under Development
® Loan Production Offices

Oklahoma




Our goal is to achieve an optimal market share in each market. In our v1ew thls does not necessarlly
mean the number one or even number two share in a market. We believe that 1n most cases it would require
too many offices, too much marketing or too aggressive pricing to get the number one or numbe'r two
market share. We believe we can usually produce a better return for shareholders by targeting a lower
market share. Our objective is to achieve as much market share and as many ec?nomles of scalelas possible
without going beyond the pomt where we realize diminishing returns on additional investment in offices.

As we round out our Arkansas branch network over the next several years, we expect to sysnlamatlcally
ramp up our office openings in other states. At year-end 2006 our operatlonts out51de Arkansas consnsted
of four permanent and one temporary Texas banking office and loan productlon ofﬁces in Charlotte North
Carolina and Tulsa, Oklahoma. Qur results so far in Texas and North Carolma are very encouragmg At
year-end 2006, our Texas offices accounted for 7.5% of our loans and leases and 5.0% of our deposits,
and our North Carolina office accounted for 4.3% of our loans and leases.

We expect to add more new offices in Texas, Oklahoma and North Carol:na in the next several years.
Our measured approach to building our operations outside Arkansas prowdes ample opportunity to test,
and adjust as necessary, our banking strategy in these markets. In addition our 1n1t1a] offices in these states
should provide a nucleus of operations from which we can expand more aggresswely in the future. Starting
in 2009 we expect to focus primarily on branch expansion in these three states. l
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George Gleason Chairman of the Board and Chigf Executive Qfficer
George Gleason has led the Company and its predecessors for 28 years.

The Company owns a state-chartered subsidiary bank that conducts banking
operations through 62 offices in 34 communities throughout northern, western
and central Arkansas, five Texas banking offices, and loan production offices in
Little Rock, Arkansas; Charloite, North Carolina and Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Mark Ross Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer

& Mark Ross joined the Company in 1980. Mr. Ross is responsible for oversight of
a number of operational and administrative functions of the Company including

internal audit, compliance, loan review, facilities, technology, human resources,
training, marketing, cash management, branch administration, deposit services
and trust services.

B Paul Moore Chief Financial Qfficer and Chief Accounting Qfficer

Paul Moore joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer in 1995 and oversees

| all accounting, tax, financial reporting and regulatory reporting functions for
the Company. He has been a Certified Public Accountant for 28 years.

Dan Rolett Executive Vice President _

Dan Rolett oversees a broad range of duties including the Company’s investment
portfolio, public funds deposits, deposit pricing, funds management, Community
Reinvestment Act initiatives, and business development activities. Mr. Rolett
has 25 years of banking experience and joined the Company in 1996.

Ron Kuykendall Chief Information Qfficer

Ron Kuykendall joined the Company in 1989 and is responsible for the
oversight of information systems, branch support, e-banking and item
processing. Mr. Kuykendall has 21 years of experience in banking.

| ‘
Note: George Gleason, Mark Ross, Paul Moore and Dan Rolett serve in the same officer capacity for both the Company and its
bank subsidiary. All other officers shown in this article serve as officers only of the bank subsidiary in the capacidies indicated.
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Scott Hastings President, Leasing Division 1
Scott Hastings joined the Company in 2003 to establlsh a Leasing Division.

Mr. Hastings has 26 years experience in leasing, mcludmg serving : as president
of a leasing division with $800 million in assets for a large diversified national

financial services firm.

Dan Thomas President, Real Estate Speaalaes Group
Dan Thomas has over 20 years experience in structurmg, financing and
managmg commercial real estate transactions. He ]omed Bank of the Ozarks
in 2003 and opened the Dallas loan productlon ofﬁce in order to estabhsh a
commercial lending presence in Texas. The Company converted the Dallas
loan productlon office to a banking office i in 2004

l

|
| Rex Kyle President, Trust Division
Rex Kyle has 28 years experience in banking as a trust professional. Mr. Kyle
joined the Company in 2004 as President of the "lTust Division, Wthh offers a

34 wide array of asset management and trust serv1ces for individuals, businesses

and government entities.
|

Gene Holman Fresident, Mortgage Division i
Gene Holman has 33 years of mortgage banking and real estate experience
in Arkansas including six years of managing Texas and Tennessee mortgage
banking operations. He joined the Company in 2004 as President of the
Mortgage Division.

|

Darrel Russell President, Central Division ‘I

Darrel Russell has 26 years of banking experience and has been with the
Company since 1983. In 2001 he was named President of the Central Dmsmn
which consists of 18 offices in Little Rock (8}, North thtle Rock (4), Sherwood,
Maumelle, Benton (2}, Bryant and Hot Springs Vlllage Mr. Russell is also
responsnble for oversight of the Company’s loan productlon office

| in Charlotte, North Carolina. |

W C.E. Dougan President, Western Division

C.E. Dougan has 37 years of banking experience and joined the Company

as a director in 1997. In 2000 he resigned his dlrectorshlp and joined the

management team as President of the Western DlVlSlOI‘l The Western Division

consists of 13 offices in Ft. Smith (3), Van Buren' (2) Alma, Mulberry,
- Ozark (2}, Altus, Clarksville (2) and Paris. \

Danny Criner President, Northern Division \
Danny Criner has 30 years of banking experience, all with the Company/|or its
predecessors. Since 1991, Mr. Criner has served as President of the Northern
Division, which consists of ten offices in Harrison, (2), Bellefonte Western
Grove, Jasper, Marshall, Clinton, Yellville and Mountain Home (2).
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Sarah Shaw President, Conway Division

Sarah Shaw has 20 years of banking experience and joined the Company in
2002. In 2006 she was named President of the Conway Division which consists
of four offices in Conway.

1

Fred Campbell President, Eastern Division

Fred Campbell joined the Company in 2002 and has a total of 35 years of
banking experience, In December 2003 he was named President of the Eastern
Division which consists of two offices in Cabot and one office in Lonoke.

Brad Payne President, Russellville Division

Brad Payne has 20 years of banking experience and joined the Company in
2004. He serves as President of the Russellvnlle Division which con51sts of
three offices in Russellville.

| Shannon White President, Northwest Division

Shannon White has 15 years of banking experience and joined the Company in
2005. He leads our expansion into Northwest Arkansas where we have opened
eight offices since 2005. Six more offices are planned for the Northwest Division
over the next three years. '

Rick Wisdom President, Southwest Division

Rick Wisdom has 24 years of banking experience and joined the Company in
2004 as President of the Southwest Division, which consists of two offices in
Texarkana, Texas and one office in Texarkana, Arkansas.

Dennis James President, Metro Dallas Division

} Dennis James has 34 years of experience in finance and management and
joined the Company in 2005. As President of the Metro Dallas Division,
Mr. James leads our retail banking expansion in the metro-Dallas area.
Our first permanent facility in Frisco opened in December of 2006 and a
second full-service facility will open in 2007.

v

John Davis President, Hot Springs Division i

John Davis has 24 years of banking experience and joined the Company in
2005 as President of the Hot Springs Division. The Company opened its first
two offices in Hot Springs in 2006 and expects to open two more offices over
the next two years.
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The 2006 Bank of thc‘ Ozark.!; Run For Their Lwe.l 5K Race
bengfited eight Arkan. *as yaum ministries provzdrr;g $435.000
in net proceeds to Young Life) Fellowship of Chnsaan Athletes,
LTCare, PARK., Mmzsfry to the Inner Cigy. STEE, Christian
Competition and Crisis Pregnangr Center.

Bank of the Ozarks contributes in many ways to the
positive civic, social and economic development of the
communities we serve.

Caring and Generous

Bank of the Ozarks employees are some of the most caring and generous people in their communities.
We volunteer thousands of hours to support community projects and those who need a helping hand. As an
example of what Bank of the Ozarks’ employees do for others, look no further than Rachel Greene, IMinnie
Mills, Rex Kyle, Matt Reddin, Eric Gustafson, Mike Bearden and Pat Strack who volunteered their time as
Salvation Army Red Kettle volunteers in Little Rock, Arkansas durmg the cold December holidays. The Red
Kettle donations provide a variety of services to the less fortunate in the communmes where the money is raised.

Encouraging Economic Development and Affordable Housing ! |

We encourage economic development to support new and existing businesses and the creation of affordable
housing through our loans and investments. Assisting individuals and Famllu s-realize their dreams|of
homeownership is one of the efforts in which we take most pride. In 2006, we successfullv used thejFederal
Home Loan Bank's (FHLB) Affordable Housing Program to assist individuals and families in the Russellville,

Arkansas area become homeowners through the USDA Self Help Housing program
Enriching and Strengthening our Communities |

Bank of the Ozarks provides financial support to hundreds of worthwhile orcamzanons responding to a
broad range of needs. By combmmg our financial support and resources with caring employees who volunteer

their time and talent, we strive to enrich lives and strengthen the fabric of our communities. Bank of the

Ozarks is proud to work with and support each of the outstanding orgamzatlons‘llsted below among others.

>

ARKANSAS
ANTS CENTER

A

ARKANSAS SYMPHONY
ORCHESTRA

oo b m’/‘.

Share The Experience

Nt

r

-4-H Foundations
American Cancer Sociely
Relay for Life
American Heart Assocmnon
Arkansas Association of |
Colleges & Universiti€s |
Arkansas Cancer
Research Foundation
Arkansas Children's
Hospital Foundation
Arkansas Economic
Development Foundation
Arkansas Prostate
Cancer Foundation
Baptist Health Foundation
Bethany Christian Services'
Big Brothers and Big Sisters
Boone County Spec1a1 Services
Boy Scouts of America
Boys & Girls Clubs

p

Center for Youth
and Families

Easter Seals Arkansas
The First Tee
Junier Achievement:
March of Dimes
lThe Nature Conservancy
Pulaski Technical College
| Library Expansion
Runway for a Cause
Salvation Army

Special Olympics

Susan G. Komen

1 Race for the Cure
Together Jobs for

| River valley

Tontitown Grape Festival
United Way

Women & Children First
Youth Home




Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Income statement data: ,
TOLETESE ACOME .vvevrecverresrensenreeecnerrersericsessasnsanes 155,198 $ 112,881 $ 85231 $ 68,883 $ 60913
lntere;’;t EXPENSE ©oveireie i i einiesr st eresnera e ] 84,478 44,305 24,608 20,115 21,076
Net interest INCOME ..ot eneiarnis 70,720 68,576 60,623 48,768 39,837
Provision for loan and lease losses .......cccccovvveee 2,450 2,300 3,330 3,865 3,660
NON-NLEeSt INCOME «...eovcrerserrererensrrerecerensinrens 23,231 19,252 18,225 17,391 11,689
NON-INEETESE EXPENSE ..ocovirririininicasrnrseranranrrrees! 46,390 40,080 37,605 31,992 24,915
NEL IHCOTIE .vviveeevrirrererenererees e aneene! 31,693 31,489 25,883 20,201 14,406
Share a'nd per share data:*
Earmngs diluted......ooooveiiiciri 3 5 1.89 $ .1.88 % 1.56 % 124 §$ 0.92
Book value .....ccecevees rreereeiraete s et e e nane e e e rreaerd ‘ 10.43 8.97 7.36 6.07 4.70
: Dlvndends 0.40 0.37 0.30 0.23 0.155
Weighted-average diluted shares !
outstandmg {thousands} ............ccooiiiiiinnnnnns 16,803 16,766 16,635 16,287 15,689
End of period shares outstanding {thousands) ;' 16,747 16,665 16,494 16,233 15,506
Balance sheet data at period end: i
Total ASSELS vvvirerveeeee e ' $2,529,400 $2,134,882 $1,726,840 $1,386,529 $1,036,386
Total loans and leases .........cccccvvcerciiinieniens I 1,677,380 1,370,723 1,134,591 909,147 717,895
Alldwance for loan and lease losses ................ . 17,699 17,007 16,133 13,820 10,936
Total investment securities ..............cecinnininenns 620,132 574,120 434,512 364,320 232,168
Tota] deposits ... T 2,045,092 1,591,643 1,379,930 1,062,004 790,173
Repurchase agreements with customers .........\|.. 41,001 35,671 33,223 29,898 20,739
Other bOrroWINgS......cocvveviineeriencineies e 194,661 304,865 144,065 145,541 129,366
Subordmated debentures.......ccocevnveninniniennn 64,950 44,331 44,331 46,651 17,784
Total stockholders’ equity .......cccocoeervennnl e, 174,633 149,403 121,406 98,486 72,918
Loan and lease to deposit 1atio ......c.....co.evrene- : 82.02% 86.12% 82.22% 85.60% 90.85%
Aver;ige balance sheet data: .
To[al AVETAZE ASSELS «vvnverveereersesenceneerenecerenoes $2,365,316 $1,012,961  $1,547,184 $1,197,346 $ 922,950
Total average stockholders’ equity ................ 8. 158,194 137,185 108,419 85,471 64,149
Average equity to average assets ..........coue L 6.69% 7.17% 7.01% 7.14% 6.95%
Perfbrmance ratios: ! : -
Return ON AVETAge @SSELS ..ooviriiieieriensons] 1.34% 1.65% 1.67% 1.69% 1.56%
Retum on average stockholders’ equity f 20.03 22.95 23.87 23.63 22.46
N_et interest margin - FTE ... 3.49 4.18 4.43 4.52 4.69
EFFICIENCY ¢-evvvvem s reessrenresseeneseeseesnissnsens . 47.07 43.43 46.23 47.51 47.94
Dividend Payout .........oeeeensrerrserrensesseneon, .. 21.16 19.68 19.23 18.55 16.85
Assets quality ratios: :l
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases?..... 0.12% 0.11% 0.10% 0.20% 0.22%
Nonperforming loans and leases to total
| loans and 1€ases ..., L, S 0.34 0.25 0.57 0.47 0.31
I?Jonperforming assets to total assets ..........] f... 0.24 0.18 . 0.39 0.36 0.24
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a ;
percentage of: i
Total loans and-1eases ..........c.ccocvinininnns L SO 1.06% 1.24% 1.42% 1.52% 1.52%
Nonperforming loans and leases ................ ... 310% 502% 248% 326% 498%
Capital ratios at period end: J '
ILEVELAZE ...vvevrvevnrvreereeeeecioseniercrenieennsere e, - 9.39% 9.11% 9.41% 9.33% 8.64%
i Tier 1 risk-based capital ............ceeerreeeemnee. A 11.71 11.94 12.34 12.41 11.43
Total risk-based capital ...l l ......... 12.76 13.02 13.74 14.89 12.68

* Adjusted to give effect to 2-for-1 stock splll effective December 10, 2003.

|
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS | '\

General ' l

Net income for Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. (the “Company”) was $31.7 million fcljr the year ended December
31, 2006, a 0.6% increase from net income of $31.5 million in 2005. Net i mcome in 2004 was $25 9 million.
Diluted earnings per share increased 0.5% to $1.89 in 2006 compared to $1 88 in 2005. Diluted earnings
per share in 2004 were $1.56.

The table below shows total assets, loans and leases, deposits, stockholders’ equity and book value
per share at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the percentage changes year over year.

| % Change
December 31, ' 2006 2005
2006 2005 2004 \ from 2005 from 2004 -
. (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) | l
Total ASSeLS..uvvereeeeieeeeirereiinannes $2,529,400 $2,134,882 $1,726,840 | 18.5% 23.6%
Loans and leases ..................... 1,677,389 1,370,723 1,134,591 22.4 20.8
Deposits......ccovvvervcnneciicinnanen, 2,045,092 1,591,643 1,379,930 \ 28.5 15.3
Stockholders’ equity ................ 174,633 149,403 121,406 \ 16.9 23.1
Book value per share............... -10.43 8.97 7.36 | 16.3 21.9

Two measures used to assess performance by banking institutions are return on|average assets (* ROA")
and return on average equity (“ROE"). ROA measures net income in relation’ to average total assets. It is
calculated by dividing annual net income by average total assets and mdlcates a company s ability to employ
its resources profitably. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company'’s; ROA was 1.34% compared
with 1.65% and 1.67%, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 ROE is calculated
by dividing annual net income by average shareholders’ equity and indicates how effectlvely a company can
generate net income on the capital invested by its shareholders. For the year ¢nded December 31, 2006, the
Company's ROE was 20.03% compared with 22.95% and 23.87%, respectively, |l‘or the years ended December

31, 2005 and 2004. |
-Analysis of Results of Operations l l

The Company is a bank holding company whose primary business is commercial banking conducted
through its wholly-owned state chartered bank subsu:l:ary Bank of the Ozarks; (the Bank”). The Company s
results of operations depend primarily on net interest income, which is the dlfference between the inferest
income from earning assets, such as loans, leases and investments, and the mi:erest expense mcurred on
interest bearing liabilities, such as deposits, other borrowings and subordinated debentures The Company
also generates non-interest income, including service charges on deposit accounts mortgage lending income,
trust income, bank owned life insurance (“BOLI") income, other charges and fees and gains and losses on
sales of assets.

The Company’s non-interest expense consists primarily of employee compensa‘tlon and benefits, net
occupancy and equipment expense and other operating expenses. The Company S results of operatlons are
significantly affected by its provision for loan and lease losses and its provision for mcome taxes. The followmg
discussion provides a summary of the Company’s operations for the past three }ears and should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes presented elsewhere in the report.

Net Interest Income !

Net interest income and net interest margin are analyzed in this discussion on a fully taxable equivalent
(“FTE") basis. The adjustment to convert net interest income to a FTE basis consists of dividing tax- exempt
income by one minus the statutory federal income tax rate of 35%. The FTE adjustments to net interest
income were $4.6 million in 2006, $4.5 million in 2005 and $2.5 million in 2004. |




|

|

2006 compared to 2005 ' ;

Net 1r1|terest income (FTE) for 2006 increased}3.1% to $75.3 million compared to $73.0 million for 2005.
Net mterest margin (FTE) was 3.49% in 2006 compared to 4.18% in 2005, a decrease of 69 basis points
(* bps") The relatively flat to inverted yield cur(ze between short-term and long-term interest rates and the
competitive environment for pricing loans and deposnts durmg 2006 were 51gmﬁcant contributors to both
the decline in the Company's net interest margin (FTE) and in its net interest income (FTE) in 2006
compared to 2005. : !

Yields on earning assets increased 69 bps in}2006 compared to 2005. This increase was due primarily to
an mcrease in loan and lease yields of 96 bps. I he increased loan and lease yields are attributable to overall
mcreases in general interest rate levels durmg 2006 as a result of the Federal Open Market Committee
(“FOMC") raising its federal funds target rate hrough a series of four 25 bps increases during the first half
of 2006 which followed eight 25 bps mcreases during 2005. The Company’s variable rate loans and leases
as a percentage of total loans and leases were %43.7% at December 31, 2006, down slightly from 44.0% at
December 31, 2005. These variable rate ioans’and leases benefited the Company in 2006 as the yields on
such Ioans and leases adjusted more quickly than the yields on fixed rate loans and leases to increases in
the prime rate and other interest rates which followed the FOMC's increases in the federal funds target rate.

The Company’s aggregate yield on its mves!ment securities portfolio increased 11 bps in 2006 compared
to 2005 This was the result of a 28 basis pomt increase in yield on taxable investment securities, an 11
basis pomt increase in yield on tax-exempt 1nvestment securities and a shift in the composition of the
portfoho to include a higher proportion of taxable investment securities. The increases in the yields on the
Company s taxable and tax-exempt investmelit securities were primarily a result of new purchases during
2006 with weighted-average yields above the; weighted-average yields of the taxable and tax exempt
mvestment securities portfolios at the begmnlng of the year.

The 69 bps increase in earning asset yleld in 2006 compared to 2005 was more than offset by a
141 bps increase in the rates on interest bearmg liabilities, resulting in the overall net interest margin
(FTE) compression. The increase in the rates on interest bearing liabilities was primarily attributable to
a 151I bps increase in the rates of interest be.mng deposits. This increase in the rates on interest bearing
dep051ts the largest component of the Comp.my s interest bearing liabilities, was attributable to overall
mcreases in general interest rate levels and more aggressive deposit pricing by the Company in 2006.
Addltxonally. the Company’s time deposits, V\‘hlch generally pay higher rates than its other interest bearing
deposnts increased to 68.7% of the Company’s average interest bearing deposits in 2006 compared to
64. 3% in 2005. ‘ j

The rates on the Company’s other borrowmgs which are comprised primarily of Federal Home Loan
Bank of Dallas (“FHLB") advances and federal funds purchased, increased 102 bps in 2006 compared to
2005 The majority of the Company’s other borrowmgs are short-term in nature and have interest rates
Wthh tend to move in tandem with the fed ral funds target rate. The rate on the Company’s subordinated
debentures adjust quarterly at various margins above the 90-day London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR")
and 'mcreased 171 bps in 2006 compared t¢f 2005.

2005 compared to 2004

Net interest income (FTE) for 2005 mcredsed 15.7% to $73.0 million compared to $63.1 million for 2004.
The' growth in net interest income (FTE) m 2005 was prlmarlly attributable to a 22.6% growth in average
earnmg assets. Net interest margin (FTE) vgas 4.18% in 2005 compared to 4.43% in 2004, a decrease of
25 bps. Yields on earning assets increased!56 bps in 2005 compared to 2004. This increase was due to an
mcrease in loan and lease yields of 63 bps']The increased Ioan and lease erIds are attributable to overall
increases in genera] interest rate levels durmg 2005 as a result of the FOMC raising its federal funds target
rate through a series of eight 25 bps incredses during the year, which followed five 25 bps increases during
2004. Additionally, the Company mcreasecj variable rate loans and leases as a percentage of its total loans
and leases from 40.6% at December 31, 2Q04 to 44.0% at December 31, 2005. Such increase in variable
rate loans and leases allowed the Company to more qu1ckly benefit from the increases in the prime rate and
other interest rates which followed the FOMC increases in the federal funds target rate. However, competitive
loan pricing in many of the Company’s markets and a flattening of the yield curve differential between
short-term and long-term interest rates du rmg 2005 limited the Company’s ability to benefit fully from
th(le FOMC rate increases. !

.’
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The Company's aggregate yield on its investment securities portfolio increased 39 bps in 2005 compared
10 2004. This was the result of a 31 basis point increase in yield on taxable, mvestment securities| a 15 basis
point decrease in yield on tax-exempt investment securities and a shift in the composmon of the portfollo to
include a higher proportion of tax-exempt investment securities. The i mcrease in the yield on the Company s
taxable investment securities was primarily a result of new purchases at hlgher rates throughout 2005. The
decrease in yield on the Company’s tax-exempt investment securities was prlmarlly a result of purchasmg
new tax-exempt investment securities with a weighted-average yield below the weighted-average yield of
the tax-exempt investment securities in the portfolio at the beginning of the year. |

The 56 bps increase in earning asset yields was more than offset by an increase in the rates on interest
bearing liabilities of 85 bps in 2005 compared to 2004, resulting in the overall net interest margm (FTE)
compression. The increase in interest bearing liabilities rates was primarily attrlbutable to an increase in the
rates of interest bearing deposits of 83 bps. This increase in the rates on interest bearing dep051ts the largest
component of the Company'’s interest bearing liabilities, was prlmanly attnbutable to the overall increases in
general interest rate levels in 2005 resulting from the FOMC rate increases and compeutlve deposit{pricing
pressures in the Company’s markets. Addmonally, the Company’s time depoqts increased to 64.3% of the
Company's average interest bearing deposits in 2005 compared to 61.0% in 2004.

The Company's use of other borrowings, which are comprised primarily of FHLBiadvances and federal
funds purchased, increased in 2005 compared to 2004. The rate on the Company s other borrowmgs

increased by 69 bps and the rate on its subordinated debentures increased b) 05 bps in 2005 compared
to 2004. Such rate increases were attributable to the increase in short-term mterest rates.

Analysis of Net Interest Income ‘
(FTE = Fully Taxable Equivalent) |

Year Ended December 31}
2006 "1_2005 2004
(Dollars m thousands) ]
TIEEIESE AMCOME ...oviiirieiiiire e et eeseva s avs s srarr e e $155,198 $1 12 881 $85,231
FTE QdUSIMENL ....cvvvvervveiiniseeereseeteeeenreneieeesoneneseeeronsseseserensrons 4,596 | 3,465 2,500
Interest income - FTE ..o 159,794 117,346 87,731
TIVEEIESE EXPEIISE ..vvveveevemsresssessseseesteseesissesasesessseseserenesesnsssenssene - 84,478 | 44,305 241608
Net interest income - FTE .......cccoorveiiiiiinnninncininnsnccnrnsans e $ 75316 $ 73,041 $63!123
Yield on interest earning assets - FTE ..., 7.41% 6.72% 6.16%
Rate on interest bearing liabilities ..., 4.13 \2.7 2 1.87
Net interest margin - FTE .......ccooviiinii e 3.49 4.18 4.43

|
\
\
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The following table sets forth certain informatjon relating to the Company’s net interest income (FTE) for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and J004. The yields and rates are derived by dividing interest
income or interest expense by the average balarj'ce of the related assets or liabilities, respectively, for the
periods shown except where otherwise noted. A\'(erage balances are derived from daily average balances for
such assets and liabilities. The average balance'of loans and leases includes loans and leases on which the
Company has discontinued accruing interest. T he average balances of investment securities are computed
based-on amortized cost adjusted for unrealizedj gains and losses on investment securities available for
sale (“AFS"). The yields on [oans and l[eases in}:lude late fees and amortization of certain deferred fees
and origination costs, which.are considered adjustments to yields. Interest expense and rates on other
borrowings are presented net of interest capitalf zed on construction projects.

Average Consolidated Balance Sheets and Net Interest Analysis
: Year Ended December 31,

2006 H 2005 2004
Average Income/[[Yield/  Average Income/ Yield/  Average [ncome/ Yield/
Balance Expensel| Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Earning assets: .
Interest earning deposits

8 =

and federal funds sold......... $ 287 § 10} 3.44% $ 332 % i1 3.44% $ 434 § 19 4.30%
Investrment securities: |

TAXADIE covonrvevreeeiereeeeens 452,943  25,346) 5.60 319,234 16,998 5.32 310,569 15,566 5.01

Tax'lexempt-FTE......,....... 184,779 12,894 6.98 181,386 12,468 6.87 98,408 6,004 7.02
Loans and leases - FTE........... 1,517,818 121,544 8.01 1,245,779 _ 87,869 7.05 1,015,835 65242 6.42

Total eaming assets - FTE.. 2,155,827 159,794 7.41 1,746,731 117,346 6.72 1,425,246 87,731 6.16
Non-interest earning assets...... 209,489 166,230 121,938

‘ Total assets ............... $2,365,316 $1,912,961 $1,547,184

[ LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interest:bearing liabilities: J

Deposits:
Savings and interest
be:aring transaction .......... $ 523324 $13.694 2.62% $ 466,609 $ 7,041 151% § 420325 $ 4,232 1.01%
Time deposits of i ,
$100,000 or more ............ 752,765 35,120 4.67 542,378 16,265 3.00 411,865 7,757 1.88
Other time deposits ........... _ 398,178 16541 4.15 299,104 8,008 2.68 245935 4,807 1.95
Total interest E!
| bearing deposits ........... 1,674,267 65345 3.90 1,308,001 31,314 2.39 1,078,125 16,796 1.56
Repurchase agreements )
with customers ............ceceeve. 39,213 1,312 3.35 26,620 450 1.69 37,116 446 1.20
Other borrowings .......e..cccouun. 282,925 13,963 4.930 251,589 9,848 3.910 159,510 5,134 3.2200
Subordinated debentures........ 49,641 3,868 7.79 44,331 2693 6.08 41,099 2,232 5.43
Total interest ]
il bearing liabilities .......... 2,046,046 84,478 4.13 1,630,631 44,305 2.72 1,315,850 24,608 1.87
Non-interest bearing liabilities: i -
Non-interest bearing deposits ... 152,281 138,072 118,798
Other non-interest I
bearing liabilities ................ 8,795 ', 7,073 4,117
|Total liabilities ................. 2,207,122 ! 1,775,776 1,438,765
Stockholders’ equity .......ccoeveeen 158,194 137,185 108,419
Total liabilities and I
stockholders’ equity ... $2,365,316 ; $1,912,961 $1,547,184
)
Net interest income - FTE......... $751816 $73,041 $63,123
Net ihterest margin - FTE ......... i 349% - 4.18% 4.43%

1
(1) The interest expense and rates for other borrowings are impacted by interest capitalized on construction projects in
tﬁe amount of $1.0 million, $0.4 million and[$0.1 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004. In the absence of this capitaization, these rates would have been 5.28%, 4.09% and 3.31%,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

¢
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The following table reflects how changes in the volume of interest earmng assets and interest bearing

liabilities and changes in interest rates have affected the Company’s interest mcome (FTE}, 1nterest expense
and net interest income (FTE) for the perlods indicated. Information is provided 'in each category1 with respect
to changes attributable to (1)’ changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); (2) changes in
rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (3) changes in ratefvo]ume (changes in rate multiplied
by change in volume). The changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate havelall been
allocated to the changes due to volume.

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

2006 over 2005 2005 over 2004

Yield/ Net \ Yield/ Net
Volume Rate Change | Volume Ratel| Change
(Dollars § m thousands)

Increase (decrease) in: l
Interest income - FTE: ) | l

Interest earning deposits
and federal funds sold .........cccoccveennnnen. $ 2) $ 1 $ Mnml s 3% OG5 (8)
Investment securities: :
Taxable .....cccceervveriieeirinieec e 7,482 866 8,348 461 971 1,432
Tax-exempt - FTE......covvvvvvrvvrecverereeeneens 237 189 426 | 5,704 (140} 5,564
Loans and leases - FTE .........occccvvvevneennene. 21,784 11,891 33,675 | 16,219 6,408| 22,627
Total interest income - FTE ... 29,501 12,947 42,448 22,381 72341 29,615
Interest expense:
Savings and interest bearmg transaction .... 1,484 5,169 6,653 698 2,111 2,809
Time deposits of $100,000 or more ............ 9,816 9,039 18,855 3914 4,594 8,508
Other time deposits .....c..cccveerveecceeiivenannn. 4,113 4,410 8,523 1,424 1,777 3,201
Repurchase agreements with customers ..... 421 441 862 ] (177) 181 4
Other borrowings .........ccocceeeeiiveeiccclinennnne 1,545 2,560 4,105 \ 3,604 1,110 4,714
Subordinated debentures.............c.....o....... 414 761 1,175 | 196 265 461
Total interest eXpense ...........cocecvvernens 17,793 22,380 40,173 \ 9,659 10,038 | 19,697
Increase (decrease) in net interest income - FTE ... $11,708 ${9,433) $ 2,275 $12,722 $(2,804)|$ 9,918
Non-Interest Income Il
The Company’s non-interest income consists primarily of (1) service charges on deposu: accounts,

(2) mortgage lending income, (3) trust income, (4) BOLI income, (5) appralsal fees credit life commissions
and other credit related fees, (6) safe deposit box rental, operating lease income, brokerage fees and)other
miscellaneous fees and (7) gains and losses on sales of assets.

2006 compared to 2005

|
Non-interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 20.7% to $23.2 million compared to
$19.3 million in 2005. Service charges on depos:t accounts are the Company's largest source of non- mterest
income and increased 3.5% to $10 2 million in 2006 compared to $9.9 million i m 2005. This i mcrease is
pnmarlly attributable to growth in the number of depos1t customers. Trust mcome increased 16.4% to $1.9
million in 2006 compared to $1.7 million in 2005. This increase is primarily the result of growth in both
corporate and personal trust business. i

Mortgage lending income declined 3.8% to $2.9 million in 2006 compared to $3.0 million in 2005.
Originations of mortgage loans for sale decreased 1.1% to $173.7 million in 2006 compared t0 $175.6
million in 2005. Refinancing of existing mortgages accounted for approxnmatelv 329 of the Companyls
2006 originations of mortgage loans for sale compared to 39% in 2005. Mortgage originations for home
purchases were 68% of 2006 originations compared to 61% in 2005.

Gains on-sales of investment securities AFS were $3.9 million in 2006 compared to,$0.2 million in 2005.
The Company sold approximately $154 million of its AFS investment securities m 2006 and approxnmately
$9 million of its AFS investment securities in 2005. Losses on sales of other assets were $0.1 million in
2006 compared to gains of $0.6 million in 2005.

|
|
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2005 compared to 2004 ,[
H

Non-interest income for the year ended Deceny

$18.2 million in 2004. Service charges on deposits accounts

iber 31, 2005 increased 5.6% to $19.3 million compared to

increased 4.2% to $9.9 million in 2005 compared

to $9.5 million in 2004. This increase is primarily

attributable to growth in core deposit customers. Trust

income increased 13.3% to $1.7 million in 2005 compared to $1.5 million in 2004. This increase is primarily
the result of continued growth in trust customefs. BOLI income increased to $1.8 million in 2005, a 49.7%
increase over 2004 BOLI income of $1.2 millior'i. This increase is primarily attributable to a full year's impact
of cash surrender value increases on BOLI purchased by the Company on October 1, 2004.

Thesq’ increases in non-interest income were partially offset by a decrease in morigage lending income.
Mortgage lending income declined 7.8% to $3.Q million in 2005 compared to $3.3 million in 2004.
Originations of mortgage loans for sale decreased 1.4% to $175.6 million in 2005 compared to $178.0
million in 2004. Refinancing of existing mortg'z'lges accounted for approximately 39% of the Company’s
2005 originations of mortgage loans for sale compared to 43% in 2004. Mortgage originations for home
purchases were 61% of 2005 originations com'i)ared to 57% of originations in 2004.

Gains on sales of investment securities weré} $0.2 million in 2005 compared to $0.8 million in 2004.
The Company sold approximately $9 million of its AFS investment securities in 2005 and approximately

$16 million of its AFS investment securities in}2004. Gains on sales of other assets were $0.6 million in
2005 cr'ompared to $0.2 million in 2004. '

The table below shows non-interest incomeffor the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Nop-lnterest Income

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
,‘ (Dollars in thousands)
Service charges on deposit accounts .............. OO TORO VPR $10,217  $ 9,875  $ 9.479
Mortgage lending inCOME.........ooovvvvvsrerercersonce. s 2,918 3,034 3,292

TEUSE TCOME w.v.voververerrsseecrsenecssassrsnseissaesnesns . USSR 1,947 1,673 1,476
Bank owned life insurance income ................ | S S 1,832 1,816 1,213
Appraisal, credit life commissions and other credit related fees ............ 521 505 440
safe deposit box rental, operating lease inconle, brokerage fees and
other miscellaneous fees.........ccovmeveeernne OO 1,125 1,099 1,006
Gains'on sales of investment securities ........ L ESOUOTORSU PO 3,917 213 774
Gains (losses) on sales of other assets ......... L SOUOTU ORI PPRRIIINE (90} 567 241
e R ? l ....................................... 844 470 304
Total non-interest iNCOME .......cccovoveeeenss! | O $23,231. $19,252 $18,225

Non-Interest Expense ,

' d employee benefits, net occupancy and equipment expense
and other operating expenses. Non-interest:éxpense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 15.7%
to $46.4 million from $40.1 million in 2005[and increased 6.6% in 2005 from $37.6 million in 2004. Salaries
and employee benefits, the Company’s largést component of non-interest expense, increased 17.2% to $27.5
million in 2006 from $23.5 million in 2005;';md increased 13.6% in 2005 from $20.7 million in 2004.

Non-interest expense for both 2006 and 2005 increased compared to the previous year primarily as a result
of the Company’s continued growth and eX[fansion and in 2006 as a result of the initiatives described below.
During 2006 the Company added 11 new biinking offices and closed one banking office, and during 2005

it added six new banking offices. At December 31, 2006, the Company had 67 full service banking offices

compared to 57 at December 31, 2005 anngl at December 31, 2004. The Company's full-time equivalent
employees increased to 699 at December 31, 2006 compared to 629 at December 31, 2005 and 561 at

December 31, 2004, an increase of 11.1% in 2006 and 12.1% in 2005.

lr:l 2006 the Company also pursued a brélad range of actions intended to build its staff and corporate
infrastructure to support future growth. Staff additions included adding more production staff such as loan
officers, mortgage loan counselors and private bankers at existing offices, adding corporate staff members
and giving certain salary increases to helpretain and develop the next generation of supervisors and

managers. The corporate infrastructure improvements included development and implementation of a

nufnber of new policies, procedures and processes related to risk management and business operations.

. . Lo
Non-interest expense consists of salaries ian
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In December 2004 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (*SFAS™) No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS No. 123R
eliminated the alternative to use Accountmg Principles Board (“APB") Opinion No 25's intrinsic,value
method of accounting that was prov1ded in SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123R requlres entities to measure the
cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity mstluments based on the grant-date
fair value of the award. Such cost is to be recogmzed over the vesting penod of the award. Effecuve January
1, 2006 the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospectlve application to account for its
stock option plans. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recogmzed $0.9 million 'of non-
interest expense as a result of applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123R to, its stock option plans| The
Company had previously adopted the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS No. 148,
and recorded pretax expenses of $0.6 million during 2005 and $0.3 million durmg 2004 in accountmg for
its stock option plans.

I
The Company’s efficiency ratio for 2006 increased to 47.1% compared to 43. 4% in 2005. This increase
was prlmarlly attributable to expenses incurred in connection with the Company s continued growth and
expansion efforts growing faster than revenue (the sum of net interest mcome ETE and non- mterest
income). Because revenue grew at a faster rate in 2005 than did non- 1ntere*.t expense, the Company’s

2005 efficiency ratio improved to 43.4% compared t0 46.2% in 2004,
The following table shows non-interest expense for the years ended Decel'ntlJer 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Non-Interest Expense
Year Ended December 31,
2006 | 12005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)
Salaries and employee Denefits . .........ovveriverersveieierereeresieenni $27,506 | $23,477 $20,666
Net occupancy and equipment EXPENSEe.......vvviiveriveriveasveearveanns 7,030 6,254 5,189
Other operating expenses:
Postage and SUPPLIES .........ccovecirermeinicieiiinciirecess e 1,910 1,620 1,660
Advertising and public relations ..........c.c.oeviciiniiiiiiiinnn, 1,545 1,325 1,434
Telephone and data lines ........cccoveevverieesiiieincineeieeeiiecie e, 1,651 1,371 1,139
Professional and outside Services .......c.ccceovvervvvicrvecnnrenvennnen. 1,129 886 823
SOftWare EXPENSE . ....ovvvviere et eie et 1,068 828 662
FDIC and State asSSESSIMENLS ......vcvrveerreeriveeirrersveesiveerssessarasens 628 506 436
ATM EXPENSE ..ovviireriirrreensiree sttt ias st abb s s see e srnee e 598 611 819
Other real estate and foreclosure EXPENSL....overrecirieereerarriennn 261 213 394
Amortization of intangibles ..o 262 262 258
Write-off of deferred debt issuance Costs........ccccvvvvecreevennenns - - 852
Other .oooevieee e, PR PRTUPII 2,802 2,727 3,273
Total NON-INterest EXPENSE w.oovevvvrrvvrrvrrerreerivesriereeeseesinens $46,390 $40,080 $37,605

Income Taxes

The Company's provision for income taxes was $13.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to $14.0 million in 2005 and $12.0 million in 2004. Its effective i 1ncome tax rates were 29.7%,
30.7% and 31.7%, respectively, for 2006, 2005 and 2004. The decline in the effectlve tax rates of 97 lbps in
2006 compared to 2005 and 102 bps in 2005 compared to 2004 is due pnmarlly to mcreases in investment
securities which are exempt from state income taxes or both federal and state mcome taxes in both abso]ute
dollar and as a percentage of earning assets during 2006 compared to 2005 and durmg 2005 compared to
2004. The effective tax rates were also affected by various other factors mcludmg the impact of certain tax
credit investments, which reduced combined federal and state income taxes by $0.3 million in 2006, $0.2
million in 2005 and $0.7 million in 2004.
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| Analysis.of Financial Condition
Loan and Lease Portfolio f

l

At Dllecember 31, 2006 the Company’s loan dnd lease portfolio was $1.68 billion, an increase of 22.4%
from $1.37 billion at December 31, 2005. As c}'f December 31, 2006, the Company’s loan and lease portfolio
consisted of approximately 81.6% real estate loans, 8.9% commercial and industrial loans, 5.1% consumer
loans, 3.0% direct financing leases and 1.3% zigricultural loans (non-real estate). Real estate loans, the
Company's largest category of loans, include ai'll loans made to finance the development of real property
construction projects, provided such loans are 'Secured by real estate, and all other loans secured by real ’
estate as evidenced by mortgages or other lien::s. Total real estate loans increased 22.2% from $1.12 billion
at Déc?mber 31, 2005 to $1.37 billion at Decémber 31, 2006. This increase is primarily attributable to the
Company's continued expansion into marketsjwith significant commercial and residential development,
includ;ng northwest Arkansas, Texas and Notth Carolina.

The amount and type of loans and leases outstanding are reflected in the following table.
Loan’and Lease Portfolio

i December 31,
2006 2005 . 2004 2003 2002
J {Dollars in thousands)
Real estate: l
Reslidential 1-4 family ..o $ 281 ,’4.100 - $ 271,989 § 248,435 $218,851 $183,687
Noln-farmlnon—residential .......... 433,998 375,628 330,442 285,451 212,481
Construction/land development ... 514,899 366,827 244, 898 117,835 65,474
Agricultural .........oooveeeverreerernns 88/021 74,644 66,061 61,500 57,525
Multifamily residential.............. 507202 31,142 29,300 23,657 28,555
Total real estate ......oecvvvvvrevinnans 1,368.’.’520 1,120,230 819,136 707,294 547,722
Comrlnercial and industrial ............. 1481853 109,459 100,642 111,978 95,951
Conslumer ....................................... 86,0438 78,916 73,420 64,831 54,097
Direct financing leases ........cccoeoeee 49!705 38,060 19,320 3,622 -
Agrif:ultural (non-real estate) ........ 22i298 20,605 18,520 15,266 15,388
Other ..o 1',965 3,453 3,653 6,156 4,737
Total loans and leases ............. - $1,677,389 $1,370,723 $1,134,591 $909,147 $717,895
Loan and Lease Maturities I

I
The following table reflects loans and lezises grouped by remaining maturities at December 31, 2006,
by type and by fixed or floating interest rates. This table is based on actual maturities and does not reflect
amortizations, projected paydowns or the earliest repricing for floating rate loans. Many loans have principal

paydowns scheduled in periods prior to thd period in which they mature. In addition many variable rate
loans are subject to repricing in periods prrior to the period in which they mature.

| Loan and Lease Maturities

Over 1

! 1 Year Through Over

|‘ or Less 5 Years 5 Years Total

| ) I (Dollars in thousands)
Real StATe ...vveiicerreeeiveniiirereneeeseesinnaniiiees $541,535 $712,994 $113,991 $1,368,520
Cor'mmercial, industrial and agricultural .. X.............. 89,561 65,351 16,239 171,151
CONMSUITIET .. eevevveaieessseerirrris e sanianssasssrrreans W 20,375 59,040 6,633 86,048
Direct financing leases ............cooveveieeinns ! S 1,178 48,527 - 49,705
61111 RTUTOS PR SUURRUUUUOPPURTPIOPPRRRURTIL, AOOTRURRPN 975 931 59 1,965

TOLAL oot esterenson) | O $653,624  $886,843  $136,922 $1,677,389

FiXed TALC ....ccevvvviiiiiirivenin e ieerrreeennensasaennns ll ............... $281,620 $581,420 $ 81,499 § 944,539
Floating rate (not at a floor or ceiling rate).......ooevs 299,307 244,277 43,431 587,015
Floating rate (at flOOF Tate) ..........ccccrrrvev ; SO 52,893 8,992 4,170 66,055
Floating rate (at ceiling rate) .................. | N 19,804 52,154 7,822 79,780

TOLAL oo | I  $653,624  $886,843  $136,922 $1,677,389)
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The following table reflects loans and leases as of December 31, 2006 grouped, by expected amortlzatlons
expected paydowns or the earliest repricing opportunity for ﬂoatmg rate loans. This cash flow or repncmg
schedule approximates the Company's ability to reprice the outstanding principal of loans and leases either
by adjusting rates on existing loans and leases or reinvesting principal cash ﬂow m new loans and leases.

Loan and Lease Cash Flows or Repncmgl
Over 1 Over 2 Over 3.
1 Year Through Through Through  Over
or Less 2 Years 3 Years 5\Years 5 Years Total
(Dollars in thout_anids)
Fixed rate.......ccorvnrvinrenrrenreenn $ 353,859 $227,297 $166,319 $141,032 $56,032 $ |944,539
Floating rate (not at a floor ‘
or ceiling rate) .......ccoceeveeennins 578,722 2,470 5,161 662 - 587,015
Floating rate (at floor rate) ......... 63,706 1,835 514 \ : - 66,055
Floating rate (at ceiling rate)...... 79,780 - T - 79,780
Total .....ccovvveiiiiiieires e $1,076,067 $231,602 $171,994 $141,694 $56,032 $1)677,389
Percentage of total ..................... 64.2% 13.8% 10.2% | 8.5% 3.3% 100.0%
Cumulative percentage of total... 64.2 78.0 88.2 96.7\ 100.0
Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of (1) nonaccrual loans and leases, (2) accruing loans and leases 90 days
or more past due, (3) certain restructured loans and leases providing for a reductron or deferral of mterest or
principal because of a deterioration in the financial position of the borrower of lessee and (4) real estate or
other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan or lease oblrgatrorrs or upon foreclosure

The Company generally places a loan or lease on nonaccrual status when pavments are contracmally past
due 90 days, or earlier when doubt exists as to the ultimate collection of payments The Company mayl continue
to accrue interest on certain loans or leases contractually past due 90 days or more 1f| such loans or leases are
both well secured and in the process of collection. At the time a loan or lease is; placed on nonaccrual Status,
interest previously accrued but uncollected is generally reversed and charged against: linterest income.
Nonaccrual loans and leases are generally returned to accrual status when payments are less than 90 days past
due and the Company reasonably expects to collect all payments. If a loan or lease is, determmed to be uncollectrble
the portion of the principal determined to be uncollectible will be charged again: stithe allowance for loan and
lease losses. Income on nonaccrual loans.or leases is recognized on a cash basis when and if actually collected.

Nonperforming loans and leases as a percent of total loans and leases were 0. 34% at year-end 2006 ciompared
to 0.25% and 0.57%, respectively, at year-end 2005 and 2004. Nonperforming assets as a percent of total assets
were 0.24% as of year-end 2006 compared to 0.18% and 0.39%, respectively, at year—end 2005 and 2004

The following table presents information concerning nonperforming assets including nonaccrual and
restructured loans and leases, foreclosed assets held for sale and repossessions. |

Nonperforming Assets
December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollar’s in thousands)
Nonaccrual 10ans and 1€aSes .......c.covuceeeereerrincernennanes $5,713  $3,385 $‘5’|i497 $4,235  $2,194
Accruing loans and leases 90 days ‘or more past due... - - - - -
Restructured loans and leases ....... J SRR - - \

Total nonperforming loans and leases.................. 5713 3,385 6,497 4,235 2,194
Foreclosed assets held for sale and repossessionst” ......... 407 356 157 780 | 333
Total nonperforming assets ...........cvueeee. JUTTOTE $6,120  $3,741 $6,654 $5.,015  $2,527
Nonperforming loans and leases l
to total loans and leases .........cc.coevinnnn e 0.34%  0.25%  0:57% 0.47% |0.31%
Nonperforming assets to total assets .........ccceveeceenrenne. 0.24 0.18 0/39 0.36 0.24

(1) Foreclosed assets held for sale and repossessions are written down to estimated markel;l value net of estrmatedi selling
costs at the time of transfer from the loan and lease portfolio. The value of such assets is revrewed from time to time
throughout the holding period with the value adjusted to the then estimated market value net of estimated selling
costs, if lower, until disposition.
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Allowance and Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

|
The Company’s allowance for loan and lease'} losses was $17.7 million at December 31, 2006, or 1.06%
* of total loans and leases, compared with $17.0imillion, or 1.24% of total loans and leases, at December 31,
2005, The allowance for loan and lease losses Was $16.1 million or 1.42% of loans and leases at December
31, 2004. The increase in the allowance for log;'n and lease losses in recent years primarily reflects the
growth!in the Company's loan and lease portfolio. While the Company believes the current allowance is
adequate, changing economic and other conditions may require future adjustments to the allowance for
Ioan and lease losses. :

| | . :
The amounts of provision to the allowance far loan and lease losses are based on the Company's judgment
and evaluation of the loan and lease portfolio Titilizing the criteria discussed below. The provision for loan

and lez%se losses for 2006 was $2.5 million cothpared to $2.3 million in 2005 and $3.3 million in 2004.
The Company’s net charge-offs to average lgans and leases were 12 bps in 2006 compared to 11 bps in

2005 and 10 bps in 2004. The relatively low Igvel of net charge-offs in recent years has resulted in a decline
in the historical loss percentages used in the determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan and
lease losses. This has contributed to the declitie in the Company's allowance for loan and lease losses as a
percentage of outstanding loans and leases. !

An z;lnalysis of the allowance for loan and I¢ase losses for the periods indicated is shown in the
following table. l '
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

.’ Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 . 2002

{Dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period ...t $17,007 $16,133 $13,820 $10,936 § 8,712
Loans and leases charged off: '
Real estate: ?
Residential 1-4 family .......cocevvvncnc i 124 196 167 288 361
Non-farm/non-residential ................... | IO 132 47 201 433 135
Construction/land development .......... | S 58 - 29 44 216
| AGLCUIEUTAL e e, - - - 5 89
I Total real eSTALE ........ovvveeenrmresresron erecreeeenees 314 243 397 770 801
Commercial and industrial ............coo.c..... , SO 872 706 346 632 217
CONSUMET vevreerrerceenrormensiesnesssnsnsssnsisens SO 709 785 503 450 626
Direct financing 1eases......cccccorveeccnnne S 63 - - - -
Agricultural (non-real estate) ................. SO 107 50 31 23 29
il Total loans and leases charged offf}.............. 2,065 1,784 1,277 1,875 1,673
Recoveries of loans and leases previously charged off:
Real estate: { .
| Residential 1-4 family ...........cccouvnee. | S 5 53 32 20 14
Non-farm/non-residential................. SR 4 17 48 6 95
Construction/land development ........ . T 4 23 1 8 2
AGTCUIEUTal ..o L N - - - 6 -
Total real eState .......oovvreeerceennnn: | B 13 93 81 40 111
Commercial and industrial .........c...c....... | SO 47 102 35 35 12
Consumer ereerereereersressemesessssesreenesenese e 234 -~ 152 142 141 112
Direct financing 1ases ............eceeeeeclcoicccciiice 13 - - - -
Agricultural (non-real estate) .............. : S - 11 2 18 2
| Total [ECOVEITES......cccrermrmmerrmmnes L 307 358 260 234 237
Net loans and leases charged off ............... | S 1,758 1,426 1,017 1,641 1,436
Pro{fision charged to operating expense L. SO 2,450 2,300 3,330 3,865 3,660
Allowance added in bank acquisition ... b.......cccco... - - - 660 -
Balance, end of period ..........coueerrveemvecsc i $17,699 $17,007 $16,133 $13,820 $10.936
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases ................ 0.12% 0.11% 0.10% 0.20% 0.22%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to tota{
[0ans and 1eases ............ccc.ecerrreeerernnans S 1.06% 1.24%  1.42%  1.52% 1.52%

Allowance for loan and lease losses to i‘l

nonperforming loans and leases ............ S 310%  502% 248% 326%  498%




Provisions to and the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses ar!e determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 5, “Accountmg for
Contingencies,” and are based on the Company’s judgment and evaluation of the loan and lease portfolro
utilizing objective and subjective criteria. The objective criteria utilized by the Company to assess the adequacy
of its allowance for loan and lease losses and required additions to such. allowance consists pr1mar11y of an
internal grading system and specific allowances determined in accordance wrth SFAS No. 114. The Company
also utilizes a peer group analysis and an historical analysis in an effort to valrdate the overall adequacy of its
allowance for loan and lease losses. In addition to these objective criteria, the Company sub]ectlvely assesses
the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses and the need for addttlons thereto with consideration
given to the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specrf" ¢ problem loans and
leases, national, regional and local business and economic conditions that mdy affect borrowers’ or lessees’
ability to pay, the value of property securing the loans and leases, and other relevant factors.

The Company's internal grading system analysis assigns grades to all loans and leases except resrdentlal
1-4 family loans and consumer loans. Graded loans and leases are assigned to one of seven risk grades with
each grade being assigned a specific allowance allocation percentage. The grade for each individual loan or
lease is determined by the account officer and other approving officers at the ltme the loan or lease i 1s made
and changed from time to time to reflect an ongoing assessment of loan or lease nsk Grades are rev1ewed on
specific loans and leases from time to time by senior management and as part, of the Company’s mterlnal loan
review process. Residential 1-4 fam1ly and consumer loans are assigned an al]owance allocation percentage
based on past due status. Allowance allocation percentages for the various risk érades and past due Icategorres
are determined by management and are adjusted periodically. In determining these allowance allocauon
percentages, management considers, among other factors, historical loss percentages for risk rated loans and
leases, consumer loans and residential 1-4 family loans. Additionally, managem!ent considers a vartety of
subjective criteria in determining the allowance allocation percentages.

All loans deemed to be impaired are evaluated individually. The majority of the Company's impaired loans
are dependent upon collateral for repayment. Accordingly, impairment is gener.ally measured by Comp:armg
collateral value, net of holding and selling costs, to the current investment in theI loan For all other m'tparred
loans, the Company compares estimated discounted cash flows to the current 1nvestment in the loan. To the
extent that the Company’s current investment in a parricular loan exceeds its es.trmatecl net collateral value
or its estimated discounted cash flows, the impaired amount is specifically conqdered in the determmatron
of the allowance for loan and lease losses, or is immediately charged off as a reduction of the allowangce for
loan and lease losses.

The sum of all allowance amounts derived as described above, combined with a reasonable unatlocated
allowance determined by management that reflects inherent but undetected losses in the portfolio andl
imprecision in the allowance methodology, is utilized as the primary indicator of the appropl iate level of
allowance for loan and lease losses. The portion of the allowance that is not derwed by| the allowance allocatron
percentages compensates for the uncertainty and complexity in estimating loan and lease losses mcludmg
factors and conditions that may not be fully reflected in the determination and appllcatlon of the allowance
allocation percentages. The factors and conditions evaluated in determining the unallocated portion of the
allowance may include the following: (1) general economic and business condlttons affectmg key lendmg
areas, (2) credit quality trends (including trends in nonperforming loans and leases expected to result from
existing conditions), (3) trends that could affect collateral values, (4) seasoning; of the loan and lease portfolro
(5) specific industry conditions affecting portfolio segments, (6) recent loss expe: rlence in particular segments
of the portfolio, (7) concentrations of credit to single borrowers or related borrowers or to specific industries,
or in specific collateral types in the loan and lease portfolio, (8) the Company’s ongomg expansion mtolnew
markets, (9) the offering of new loan and lease products, {10) expectations regarding the current busmess
cycle, (11) bank regulatory examination resuits and (12} findings of the internal loan Irevrew department

At December 31, 2006 management believed it was appropriate to maintain an unallocated portion of the
allowance that is not derived by the allowance allocation percentages that ranges from 15% to 25% of the
total allowance for loan and lease losses. In making this assessment, management,consrdered a number of
subjective criteria including (1) the degree of seasoning of many loans and leases in the portfolio, (2) the
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granularity or concentrations of credits to sing]{ borrowers, industries, and collateral types in the portfolio,
(3) the ?ngoing expansion into new markets, and (4) the offering of relatively new loan and lease products.

In addition to the internal grading system and specific impairment analysis, the Company compares the
alIowanl'ce for loan and lease losses (as a percef tage of total loans and leases) maintained by the Bank to
the peer group average percentage as shown 01: the most recently available Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation's (“FDIC") Uniform Bank Performance Report and the Federal Reserve Bank’s (“FRB”) Uniform
Bank Hlolding Company Report. The Company dlso compares the allowance for loan and lease losses to its
historical cumulative net charge-offs for the ﬁ\;’e preceding calendar years.

The IEompany’s allowance for loan and lease; losses exceeds its cumulative historical net charge-off
experience for the last five years. However, thejallowance is considered reasonable given the significant
growthI in the loan and lease portfolio during tfecent years, key allowance and nonperforming loan and lease
ratios,,'comparisons to industry averages, currént economic conditions in the Company’s market area and
other factors. ?’ .

Although the Company does not Cleterminei he overall allowance based upon the amount of loans or
leases!in a particular type or category (except;in the case of residential 1-4 family and consumer loans),
risk elements attributable to particular loan orflease types or categories are considered in assigning loan and
lease érades to individual loans and leases. These risk elements include the following: (1) for non-farm/non-
residential, multifamily residential, and agrici;]tural real estate loans, the debt service coverage ratio (income
from the property in excess of operating expe'ilses compared to loan repayment requirements), operating
results of the owner in the case of owner-occ{‘lpied properties, the loan to value ratio, the age, condition,
value and marketability of the collateral and :l:he specific risks and volatility of income, property value and
operating results typical of properties of thatﬁ[ype; (2 for construction and land development loans, the
perceived feasibility of the project including the ability to sell developed lots or improvements constructed
for resale or ability to lease property construflted for lease, the quality and nature of contracts for presale or
prelehsing, if any, experience and ability of the developer and loan to value ratios; (3) for commecial and
industrial loans and leases, the operating results of the commercial, industrial or professional enterprise,
the I):orrower’s or lessee's business, professilgnal and financial ability and expertise, the specific risks and
volatility of income and operating results typical for businesses in the applicable industry and the age,
valulé, nature and marketability of collateralqand (4) for non-real estate agricultural loans and leases,
the operating results, experience and ability,of the borrower or lessee, historical and expected market
conditions and the age, value, nature and marketability of collateral. In addition, for each category the
Company considers secondary sources of intome and the financial strength of the borrower or lessee and
anyi'guarantors.

Tlhe Board of Directors reviews the allowl.nce on a quarterly basis to determine whether the amount of
mmllthly provisions are adequate or whethe;r additional provisions should be made to the allowance. While
the allowance is determined by (i) managernent’s assessment and grading of individual loans and leases
o T . -
in tpe case of loans and leases other than 1'“e51dent1al 1-4 family loans and consumer loans, (ii) the past
due status of residential 1-4 family loans alnd consumer loans and (iii) allowances made for specific loans
anq leases, the total allowance amount is available to absorb losses across the Company's entire loan and
lease portfolio. ’
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The following table sets forth the sum of the amounts of the allowance for. loan and lease losses attnbutable

to individual loans and leases within each category, or loan and lease categones 1n general, and the

unallocated allowance. The table also,reflects the percentage of loans and leases m each category fo the

total portfolio of loans and leases for each of the periods indicated. These allowance amounts have been

computed using the Company’s internal grading system and specific 1mpa1rment analy51s The amounts

shown are not necessarily indicative of the actual future losses that may occur within particular categones
Allocation of the Allowance for Loan and Lease|Losses

. December 31,
2006 2005 2004 ] i 2003 | 2002
' % of % of % of % of % of
Loans Loans boans Loans Loans
and and \ and and
Allowance Leases Allowance Leases  Allowance Leases Allowance Leases Allowance Leases

Real estate: - . (Dollars in thousands) ‘
Residential 1-4 family ............... $ 3,052 16.8% § 3,422 19.8% §$ 3,427 219% $ 1,393 24.1% $ 1.248 25.6%
Non-fami/non-residential .............. 3,085 259 3,368 274 3,107 2941 l 3,790 314 2,625 29.6
Construction/land development ...... 3,381 307 2,820 268 1,881 216 | 1,301 129 736 9.1
Agricultural ..o, , 765 52 562 5.5 510 5.8 \ 756 6.8 728 8.0
Multifamily residential ................... 272 30 235 2.2 26 2.6 261 26 290 40

Commercial and industriat .............. 1,373 8.9 L1111 8.0 1004 89 | 1,600 123 1,228 134

CONSUIMEL ..ocvveviiiisrisinesisivennrasenns 2,179 5.1 2,062 5.8 1,752 6.5 ‘ 1,083 7.1 975 7.5

Direct financing leases ................... 305 3.0 286 2.8 0 17 | 72 04 |- -

Agricultural (non-real estate) 150 1.3 200 15 164 16 | 195 1.7 204 2.2

Other ... - i 0.1 41 0.2 25 0.3 952 0.7 599 0.6

Unallocated allowance e 3,060 2,899 3,867 \ 2,417 2,303

Total ... crereenemereniensnseenes 917,699 $17,007 $16,133 $13,820 $10,936

The Company maintains an internally classified loan and lease list that, along w1th the list of nona‘ccrual
loans and leases and the list of impaired loans and leases, helps management : assess the overall quallty of
the loan and lease portfolic and the adequacy of the allowance. Loans and leases classified as “substandard”
have clear and defined weaknesses such as highly leveraged positions, unfavoxable ﬁnanaal ratios,
uncertain repayment sources or poor financial condition which may jeopardize collectablllty of the loan or
lease. Loans and leases classified as “doubtful” have characteristics similar to ,ubstandard loans andl leases,
but also have an increased risk that a loss may occur or at least a portion of the loan or lease may requ1re
a charge-off if liguidated. Although loans and leases classified as substandard 40 not duplicate loans and
leases classified as doubtful, both substandard and doubtful loans and leases may mclude some that are
past due at least 90 days, are on nonaccrual status or have been restructured. Loans and leases class;ﬁed
as “loss” are charged off. At December 31, 2006 substandard loans and leases not de51gnated as nonaccrual
or 90 days past due totaled $5.4 million compared to $<.4 million at December 31, 2005. No loans or [eases
were designated as doubtful or loss at December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Administration of the Bank’s lending function is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer and
certain senior lenders. Such officers perform their lending duties subject to the oversnght and policy dlrectlon
of the Board of Directors and the loan committee. Loan or lease authority is granted to the Chief Executwe
Officer and certain other senior officers as determined by the Board of Directors. Loan'or lease authorities
of other lending officers are assigned by the Chief Executive Officer. .

Loans or leases and aggregate loan and lease relationships exceeding $3.0 mlllll)n u‘p to the legal lending
limit of the Bank are authorized by the loan committee, which during 2006 consrsted of any five or more
directors and two, increasing to three in June 2006, of the Bank’s senior officers. At least quarterly the
Board of Directors reviews reports of loan and lease originations, loan and lease eommltments over
$100,000, past due loans and leases, internally classified and watch list loaris and| leases a summary of
the activity in the Company's allowance for loan and lease losses and various other loan and lease reports.

The Company’s compliance and foan review officers are responsible for the Bank‘s compllance and loan
review areas. Periodic reviews are scheduled for the purpose of evaluating asset quallty and effecnveness
of loan and lease administration. The compliance and loan review officers prepare reports which 1dent1fy
deficiencies, establish recommendations for improvement and outline managemernt's proposed action plan

for curing the identified deficiencies. These reports are provided to the Company’s. audn: committee, which
[
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consistg; of three or more members of the Boarfll of Directors all of whom have been determined by the Board
of Directors to qualify as “independent” underjthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, related SEC rules and

regulations and NASDAQ listing standards rel? ting to audit committees.

Investrlnent Securities

The Company’s investment securities portfolio provides a significant source of revenue for the Company.
At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the cdmpany classified all of its investment securities portfolio as
available for sale. Accordingly, its investmentfsecurities are stated at estimated fair value in the consolidated
financial statements with the unrealized gains} and losses, net of tax, reported as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity and included in other cofnprehensive income (loss). 1

The|following table presents the amortizedicost and the fair value of investment securities for the dates

indicated. - ie
,' . ~ Investment Securities
! December 31,
’ 1 2006 2005 2004 ‘,
Amortized Fair  Amortized Fair = Amortized Fair
Cost Value(® Cost Value(V Cost Value®
5 (Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities .................... $406,611 $397,964 $266,722 $258,540 $303,816 $299,724
Obligations of states and political |
qudivisions ....... ©rereerernreennrreranreriaarres 1';_53,255 135,149 227,286 231,681 120,599 121,691
Securities of U.S. Government agencies .. !.;7'5,875 74,530 66,027 65,503 - -
FHLB stock and other equity securities® ... ; 11,489 11,489 16,020 16,020 10,497 10,497
Other SECUTILIES .......vcvvreereeresieeersinesenene 1,000 1,000 2,300 2,376 2,530 2,600
10171 OO $628,230 $620,132 $578,355 $574,120 $437,442 $434,512

l
(1) The fair value of the Company’s investment Securities is based on quoted market prices where available. If quoted

market prices are not available, fair values aje based on market prices for comparable securities.
(2) FHLB stock and other equity securities consist of securities that do not have readily determinable fair values,
"l;hese securities are carried at cost.

The following table reflects the maturity distribution of the Company’s investment securities, at fair value,
as of December 31, 2006 and weighted-average yields {for tax-exempt obligations on a FTE basis) of such

SeCl;ll‘itieS. The maturity for all investment decurities is shown based on each security’s contractual maturity
date, except (1) equity securities with no c’n?ntractual maturity date which are shown in the longest maturity
category, (2) mortgage-backed securities v&ihich are allocated among various maturities based on an estimated
repayment schedule utilizing Bloomberg m'edian prepayment speeds based on interest rate levels at December:
31,2006 and (3) callable investment secufiities for which the Company has received notification of call are
included in the maturity category in whichithe call occurs or is expected to occur. Actual maturities will differ
from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.

|i Maturity Distribution of Investment Securities

, ’ 1 Year Over 1 Over 5 Over
or Through  Through 10
| I Less 5 Years 10 Years Years Total
{Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage-backed securities ..................... i $36,927 $ 98,123 $262914 § .- $397,964
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ... 1,171 10,944 22,122 100,912 135,149
securities of U.S. Government agencies ..1}...... - 65,252 9,278 - 74,530
OLher SECULIHES ™ ....ovvvevrnevvrrorerrsc 0. - - - 12,489 _ 12,489

| o] v- 1 APPSR PP U f.... $38,098 $174,319 $294,314 $113,401 $620,132
Percentage of total ...........ooconennniinnnnny SIS 6.14%  28.11%  47.46% 18.29%  100.00%
Weighted-average yield - FTE® ............. | S - 5.44 5.27 5.46 7.26 573

!

i

(1) Includes approximately $11.4 million of EHLB stock which has historically paid quarterly dividends at a variable
rate approximating the federal funds ratg

(2) The weighted-average yields - FTE are bfased on amortized cost.
J 29
}

‘ . o .




Deposits

The Company’s lending and investing activities are funded primarily by deposits. During 2006 the
Company pursued an initiative to grow and diversily its deposits from both retail and wholesale sources
As a result the Company's total deposits increased 28.5% to $2.05 billion at December 31, 2006, compared
to $1.59 billion at December 31, 2005. These deposit totals included brokered deposits of $309.2 million at
December 31, 2006 compared to $163.1 million at December 31, 2005.

Total deposits at December 31, 2006 included 66.4% time deposits and 33. 6% demand and savings
deposits. Total deposits at December 31, 2005 included 59.0% time deposits and 41 .0% demand and savings
deposits. Interest bearing deposits other than time deposits consist of transaction, savmgs and money market
accounts. These deposits comprised 25.4% of total deposits at December 31, 2006 and 32.0% at December 31,
2005. Non-interest bearing demand deposits constituted 8.2% of total deposits at December 31, 2006
compared to 9.0% at December 31, 2005.

The following table reflects the average balances and average rates oaid for each deposit category shown
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Average Deposit Balances and Rates

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 . % 2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Paid Amount Rate Paid Amount Rate Paid

{Dollars in thou._.ands) 1

Non-interest bearing accounts .......... $ 152,281 - $ 138,072 - 1§ 118,798 -
Interest bearing accounts: ' \
Transaction (NOW) .........ccceveneenne 404,433 2.55% 375,361 1.48% 344,908 11.06%
SAVINES ..ooeevierecerieenceeireeeeee, - 27,107 0.20 27,265 0.20 28,248 (0.24
Money market...........cccooevveenvinenns 91,784 3.65 63,983 2. 23 47,169 |1.11
Time deposits less than $100,000.... 398,178 4.15 299,104 2. 68 245,935 11.95
Time deposits $100,000 or more ..... 752,765 4.67 542,378 3.00 411,865 |1.88
| $1,196,923

Total deposits.......c.oveervevveceernene $1,826,548 $1,446,163

The following table sets forth, by time 'remaining to maturity, time deposits in amounts of $100,000 and
over at December 31, 2006. '

Maturity Distribution of Time Deposits of $100,000 and Over
December 31, 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

3 MONERS O IESS veveemeerreeeereeeereeeeserereeseseseereeanes $38'2,|315
Over3to 6 MONthS ....coovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiice e 169, 830
Over 6 to 12 MONLHS ovevvveeevieiieeeecreeeeeee v 31.1 487
Over 12 Months ....cc.oveeevieeeiieeei et 2,240

$87T.872

Other Interest Bearing Liabilities | |

l
The Company also relies on other interest bearing liabilities to fund its lending and mvestmg activities.
Such liabilities consist of repurchase agreements with customers, other borrowings (prrmarrly FHLB advances
and federal funds purchased) and subordinated debentures.

Other interest bearing liabilities totaled $300.6 million at December 31, 2006, a decrease from $384.9 million
at December 31, 2005. Repurchase agreements with customers increased to $41.0 mrllron at December 31! 2006
from $35.7 million at December 31, 2005. Subordinated debentures increased to $64. 9 mlllron at December, 31,
2006 from $44.3 million at December 31, 2005 as a result of the issuance of addrtlonal trust preferred
securities in September 2006. Other borrowings, including FHLB advances and federal funds purchased,
decreased to $194.7 million at December 31, 2006 from $304.9 million at December 31, 2005 as a result
of the Company’s increased efforts to grow and diversify deposits.
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Interest Rate Risk !

lntelrest rate risk results. from timing differénces in the repricing of assets and liabilities or from changes
in relationships between interest rate indexes,' The Company’s interest rate risk management is the
responsibility of the ALCO and Investments Committee (*ALCO”) which reports to the Board of Directors.
The ALCO oversees the asset/liability (intereé;t rate risk) position, liquidity and funds management, and

investment portfolio functions of the Compar}’y.
The Company regularly reviews its exposu;'e to changes in interest rates. Among the factors considered

are changes in the mix of interest earning ask.;ets and interest bearing liabilities, interest rate spreads and
repriqing periods. Typically, the ALCO revievxf's on at least a quarterly basis the Company’s relative ratio of
rate siensitive assets (“RSA") to rate sensitive liabilities (“RSL") and the related cumulative gap for different
time periods. However, the primary tool usedfby ALCO to analyze the Company's interest rate risk and
imer?st rate sensitivity is an earnings simuldtion model.

This earnings simulation modeling process projects a baseline net interest income (assuming no changes

in interest rate levels) and estimates changq"é to that baseline net interest income resulting from changes in
interest rate levels. The Company relies primarily on the results of this model in evaluating its interest rate
risk./In addition to the data in the gap table'presented below, this model incorporates a number of additional
factors. These factors include: (1) the expecfed exercise of call features on various assets and liabilities,
(2) the expected rates at which various RSA! and RSL will reprice, (3) the expected growth in various
interest earning assets and interest bearingliabilities and the expected interest rates on such new assets
and liabilities, (4) the expected relative movements in different interest rate indexes which are used as the
basis for pricing or repricing various assetsfand liabilities, (5) existing and expected contractual cap and
floor rates on various assets and liabilities f(6) expected changes in administered rates on interest bearing
transaction, savings, money market and time deposit accounts and the expected impact of competition on
the pricing or repricing of such accounts and (7) other factors. Inclusion of these factors in the model is
intended to more accurately project the Cori:lpany's expected changes in net interest income resulting from
interest rate changes. The Company modely its change in net interest income assuming interest rates go
up 100 bps, up 200 bps, down 100 bps and down 200 bps. For purposes of this model, the Company has
assumed that the change in interest rates phases in over a 12-month period. While the Company believes
this model provides a more accurate projection of its interest rate risk, the model includes a number of
assumptions and predictions which may of may not be correct and may impact the model results. These
assumptions and predictions include inputs to compute baseline net interest income, growth rates, expected
chz:mges in administered rates on interest bearing deposit accounts, competition and a variety of other
factors that are difficult to accurately predﬁ!ct. Accordingly, there can be no assurance the earnings

sir}'lulation model will reflect future resultg.
The following table presents the earnings simulation model's projected impact of a change in interest rates

on: the projected baseline net interest incoihe for the 12-month period commencing December 1, 2006. This
change in interest rates assumes parallel ghifts in the yield curve and does not take into account changes in
|

N .
Earnings Simulation Model Results

|'

| ,

i Change in % Change in

’ Interest Rates Projected Baseline
(in:bps) Net Interest Income

J +400 (1.5)%
! +]00 (1.8)
I -100 1.2
| -200 0.8

[ In the event of a shift in interest ratesll the Company may take certain actions intended to mitigate the
negative impact to net interest income of to maximize the positive impact to net interest income. These

actions may include, but are not limitedjto, restructuring of interest earning assets and interest bearing
liabilities, seeking alternative funding spurces or investment opportunities and modifying the pricing or
terms of loans and leases and deposits.
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The Company’s simple static gap analysis is shown in the following table. At Delcember 31, 2006 the
cumulative ratios of RSA to RSL at six months and one year, respectively, were 79'82% and 64. 30% A
financial institution is considered to be liability sensitive, or as having a negauve gap, when the amount
of its interest bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within a given time period exceeds the amount of
its interest earning assets also maturing or repricing within that time period. Conversely, an mstrtutlon is
considered to be asset sensitive, or as having a positive gap, when the amount of i 1ts interest beanng
liabilities maturing and repricing is less than the amount of its interest earnmg assets also maturing or
repricing durmg the same period. Generally, ina fallmg interest rate environment, a negative gap should
result in an increase in net interest income, and in a rising interest rate envrronment this negative gap
should adversely affect net interest income. The converse would be true for a posmve gap. Due to mherent
limitations in any static gap analysis and since conditions change on a darly basis, these expectatrons may
not reflect future results. As already noted, the Company believes the earnings srmulanon model results
presented above are a more meaningful.estimate of its interest rate risk and sensitivity.

Rate Sensitive Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2006
| Cumulative Cumulative
Period Cumulative | Gap to RSA to
RSA( RSL Gap ~  Gap | |Total RSA RSL
{Dollars in thousands) | |
Immediate to 6 months.... $ 927,418  $1,161,824  $(234,406) $(234,406) | (10.20)% 79.82%

Over 6—12 months.......... 182,256 = 563,835 (381,579) (615,985) | (26.81) 64.30

Over 1—2 years .....cocoeeeee 273,296 28,479 244,817 (371,108) (16.15) 78.84

Over 2—3 years ............... 217,235 - 3.850 213,385 (157, r83) (6.87) 91.02

Over 3—3 years ......oones 234,513 61,377 173,136 15,353 0.67 10|0.84

Over 5 years ........ccoeeenee. 463,006 358,498 104,508 119, 861 5.22 105.50
Total....ocvverrrrereeereene $2,297,724  $2,177,863 $ 119,861

(1)Certain variable rate loans have a contractual floor and/or ceiling rate. Approximately $66.1 million of loans were
at their contractual floor rate and approxrmately $79.8 million of loans were at their (ontractual ceiling rate as of
December 31, 2006. These loans are shown in the earliest time period in which they <ould reprice even though the
contractual ﬂoorlcellmg may preclude repricing to a lowerlhrgher rate. Of these loans' at their contractual floor|rate,
$62.4 million are reflected as repricing immediately to six months, $1.3 million in over 'six to 12 months and the
remaining $2.4 million are reflected in various time periods exceeding 12 months. Of these loans at their contractual
ceiling rate, $77.9 million are reflected as repricing in the immediate to six months trme period and the remaining
$1.9 million are reflected in the over six to 12 months time period.

The data used in the previous table is based on contractual repricing dates for variable or adjustable rate
instruments except for non-maturity interést bearing deposit accounts. With respect tolnon -maturity 1nterest
bearing deposit accounts, the Company believes these deposit accounts are “core” to the Company's banking
operations and may not reprice on a one-to-one basis as a result of interest rate movements At December 31,
2006 the Company estimates the co-efficient for change in interest rates is appro: nmately 50% for its mterest
bearing money market account balances, approximately 30% for its MaxYield® account balances, approxrmately
25% for its other interest bearing transaction account balances and approximately 5% for its savings account
balances. Accordingly the Company has included these portions of the non- maturrty mterest bearing deposit
accounts as repricing immediately, with the'remaining portions shown as reprrcm'J beyond five years. Fixed-
rate callable investments and borrowings are scheduled on their contractual maturity unless the Company
has received notification the investment or borrowing will be called. In the event the Company has rece1ved
notification of call, the investment or borrowing is placed in the category for the trme penod in which the
call occurs or is expected to occur. Collateralized mortgage obligations and other mortgage -backed securrtres
are scheduled over maturity periods utilizing Bloomberg consensus prepayment speeds based on interest
rate levels at December 31, 2006. Other fixed-rate financial instruments are scheduled on their
contractual maturity.

~ This simple gap analysis gives no consideration to a number of factors which can have a material impact
on the Company’s interest rate risk position. Such factors include among other thrngs call features on certam
assets and liabilities, prepayments, interest rate floors and caps on various assets and Ilab1l1t1es, the current
interest rates on assets and liabilities to be repriced in each period, and the relative changes in interest rates
on different types of assets and liabilities. \




Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices |

ThelI consolidated financial statements and f'elated notes presented elsewhere in the report have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. This requires the
measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the
chang'es in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies,
nearly all the assets and liabilities of the Coml"pany are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a

greater impact on the Company’s performancq than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates
do not necessarily move in the same directioxI or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

Capital Compliance

Bank regulatory authorities in the United States impose certain capital standards on all bank holding
companies and banks. These capital standarys require compliance with certain minimum “risk-based capital
ratios” and a minimum “leverage ratio.” Théfrisk—based capital ratios consist of (1) Tier 1 capital (common
stockholders’ equity excluding goodwill, certain intangibles and net unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale investment securities, but including]] subject to limitations, trust preferred securities and other
qualifying items) to risk-weighted assets and (2) total capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital which
inclu:des the qualifying portion of the allowa:nce for loan and lease losses and the portion of trust preferred
securities not counted as Tier 1 capital) to rigk-weighted assets. The leverage ratio is measured as Tier 1
capitlal to adjusted quarterly average assets.

The Company's consolidated risk-based c,'ilpital and leverage ratios exceeded these minimum requirements
at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and are presented in the following table, followed by the capital ratios of the
Bank at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Consolidated Capital Ratios
: December 31,
{ 2006 2005

: ‘ | (Dollars in thousands)
Tier :1 capital: i

StOCKNOIAETS’ SUILY «errevvrrerececeererrasanas! | OOV UPORROOR $ 174,633 $ 149,403
Allowed amount of trust preferred SECUITHES ....oovviviicvinicicienns 59,851 43,000
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sdle investment securities............... 4,922 2,574
I'ess goodwill and certain intangible ASSELS .............owwrrmmsreresssreriemreesiseriss (6,140) (6,402)
! Total Tier 1 Capital,...........oooerveeerrmenees H e 233,266 188,575
Tier|2 capital:
Remaining amount of trust preferred SEGUIILIES ......ooovievveiciimcnicecriinnns 3,149 -
Qualifying allowance for loan and lease:llosses ...... ettt 17,699 17,007
| Total risk-based CAPItAl ..........coocoviiistbonssinrinnnirinniiii s $ 254,114 $ 205,582
Risk-weighted assets ST SOOI $1,001,570 $1,579,371
Adjusted quarterly average assets - fourthi’quarter .......................................... $2,485,450 $2,0069,430
Ratjos at end of period: '
Leverage ......... reeeressbrsa st sen e nnaeses TR RPOPIPP PSPPSR - 9.39% 9.11%
Tier 1 risk-based capital...........cccrvcenec SOOI 11.71 . 11.94
Total risk-based capial .....c.ccoveveess et anees 12.76 13.02
| Minimum ratio guidelines: ‘
| Leverage!) ..o , (ST OTT OO TSROSO PP 3.00% 3.00%
| Tier 1 risk-based CAPItal .......vewwrre Moo 4.00 4.00
Total risk-Dased CAPILAl ........oveverrees et 8.00 8.00

(1) Regulatory authorities require institutions; to operate at varying levels (ranging from 100-200 bps) above a

)
| minimum leverage ratio of 3% depending; ipon capitalization classification.
J

1Bank Capital Ratios
: December 31,
2006 2005
i (Dollars in thousands)

' Stlockholders’ EGUILY - TIEr 1 CAPHAl coovoebeeeiieiierres e $196,816  $159,972
Lel:verage 110 o J RO UOROO . ' .......................................................... 7.95% 7.75%
Tier 1 risk-based capital 1atio ................. W e s 9.94 10.17
Tc|>tal risk-based capital FAt0 ......ccooovveverdinni 10.83 11.25

| !
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Growth and Expansion. During 2006 the Company added nine new Arkansas banking offices, mcludmg
two offices in Rogers, two offices in Hot Springs, two offices in Bella Vista, and one office each in Bentonvrlle
Texarkana and Springdale. The Company also added its fourth and fifth bankmg ofﬁces in Texas, mcludmg
Texarkana and Frisco. In addition to these 11 permanent banking offices, the Company replaced a temporary
office in Fayetteville, Arkansas with a new permanent facility, replaced one of its oldest banking offices
in Ozark, Arkansas with a new facility and established a loan production ofﬁte in Tulsa, Oklahoma.The
Company also closed one banking office during 2006. During 2005 the Company added Six Arkansas banking
offices. At December 31, 2006, the Company had 62 Arkansas banking offices, |ﬁve Texas banking ofﬁces
and loan production offices in Little Rock, Arkansas, Charlotte, North Carolina and Tulsa Oklahoma

The Company expects to continue its growth and de nove branching strategy. Durmg 2007 the Conllpany
expects to add approximately five new banking offices and replace one temporary office with a permanent
facility. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company filed an application for a new Oklahoma bank
subsidiary. Assuming this application is'approved, the Company expects to combme its existing Oklahoma loan
production office with this new charter and engage in full-service banking oper. atlons during 2007. Because
Oklahoma and North Carolina permit reciprocal interstate branching, the Company ultrmately expects to use the
new Oklahoma subsidiary to expand its North Carolina loan production office to a full- serv1ce banking operatron
most likely in 2008. Opening new offices, replacing temporary offices and chartermg a new Oklahoma bank
subsidiary are subject to availability of suitable sites, hiring qualified personnel, obtammg regulatory ; land
other approvals and many other conditions and contingencies that the Company ¢ cannot predict with certamty
The Company may increase or decrease its expected number of new offices as a result of a variety of factors
including the Company’s financial results, changes in economic or competitive conditions or other factors.

During 2006 the Company spent $31 .0 million on capital expenchtures for prt'rrluses and equipment. |The
Company's capital expenditures for 2007 are expected to be in the range of $22' to $28 million, including’
progress payments on construction projects expected to be completed in 2006 through 2008, furmtureiand
equipment costs and acquisition of sites for future development. Actual expendltures may vary significantly
from those expected, depending on the number and cost of additional branch ofﬁces constructed and sites
acqurred for future development, progress or delays encountered on ongoing and new,construction projects,
delays in or inability to obtain required approvals and other factors. |

Issuance of Subordinated Debenitures. On September 29, 2006 the Company lssued $20.6 million of
adjustable rate subordinated debentures and related trust preferred securities. T hese subordmated debentures
and securities bear interest at the 90-day LIBOR plus 1.60%, adjustable quarterly The interest rate on these
subordinated debentures and securities at December 31, 2006 was 6.96%. These' subordmated debentures
and securities have a 30-year final maturity and are prepayable at par by the Company on or after December
15, 2011 or earlier in certain circumstances.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had an aggregate of $64.9 million of subordrdated debentures|and
related trust preferred securities outstanding. In addition to the $20.6 million of subordmated debentures and
securities issued in 2006, the Company currently has cutstanding $28.9 million of subordmated debentures
and securities issued in 2003 that bear interest, adjustable quarterly, at a welghted average rate of LIBOR
plus 2.925% and $15.4 million of subordinated debentures and securities issued in 2004 that bear interest,
adjustable quarterly, at LIBOR plus 2.22%. | 1

These subordinated debentures and the related trust preferred securities provide
regulatory capital to support its expected future growth and expansion.

Bank Liquidity. Liquidity represents an institution’s ability to provide funds to satlsfy demands from
depositors, borrowers and lessees by either converting assets into cash or accessmg new or existing sources
of incremental funds. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility the Company may be unable to satisfy those
current or future financial commitments. The ALCO has primary oversight for th¢ Company’s liquidity and
funds management.

The objective of managing liquidity risk is to ensure the cash flow requirements resulting from depositor,
borrower and lessee demands, as well as operating cash needs of the Company arz rnet ]and the cost of funding
such requirements and needs is reasonable. The Company maintains a 11qu|d1ty risk management pol1cy]and
a contingency funding plan that include policies and procedures for managing llqu1d1ty nsk Generally the
Company relies on deposits, loan and lease repayments and repayments of its mvestment securities as |ts
primary sources of funds. The principal deposit sources utilized by the Company include consumer, commercial

l
the Company additional

34




and public funds customers in the Company’s markets and brokered deposits. The Company has used these

funds, together with FHLB advances and 0th§ r borrowings, to make loans and leases, acquire investment .
securities and other assets and to fund conti[}uing operations.

Deposit levels may, be affected by a numbeg of factors, including rates paid by competitors, general
interést rate levels, returns available to custofners on alternative investments and general economic and
market conditions. Loan and lease repaymen(s are a relatively stable source of funds but are subject to the
borrowers’ and lessees’ ability to repay the 1dans and leases, which can be adversely affected by a number
of faq‘,tors including changes in general econ smic conditions, adverse trends or events affecting business
industry groups or specific businesses, declifles in real estate values or markets, business closings or lay-
offs, inclement weather, natural disasters anft_l other factors. Furthermore, loans and leases generally are not
readily convertible to cash. Accordingly, the ompany may be required from time to time to rely on secondary
sources of liquidity to meet loan, lease and deposit withdrawal demands or otherwise fund operations. Such
sources include FHLB advances, secured anI unsecured federal funds lines of credit from correspondent

banKs and FRB borrowings. _

At-[ December 31, 2006 the Company had }subsl:antial unused borrowing availability. This availability was

prim'arily comprised of the following four ofitions: (1) $254 million of available blanket borrowing capacity
with! the FHLB, (2) $17 million of investment securities available to pledge for federal funds or other
borrbwings, (3) $36 million of available unfgecured federal funds borrowing lines and (4) up to $154
millilon from borrowing programs of the FRB.

The Company anticipates it will continueﬂto rely primarily on deposits, loan and lease repayments and
repayments of its investment securities to p'rovide liquidity. Additionally, where necessary, the sources of
borrowed funds described above will be uséd to augment the Company’s primary funding sources.

D}'vz‘dend Policy. In 2006 the Company pll id dividends of $0.40 per share. In 2005 and 2004 the Company
paid dividends of $0.37 and $0.30 per sharg, respectively. In 2006 the per share dividend was $0.10 in
each of the quarters. In the first quarter of 2007, the Company paid a dividend of $0.10 per share. The
detq'rmination of future dividends on the Cgmpany’s common stock will depend on conditions existing at
that time. The Company’s goal is to continife at approximately the current level of quarterly dividend with
consideration given to future changes depending on the Company’s earnings, capital and liquidity needs.

Contractual Obligations. The following tible presents, as of December 31, 2006, significant fixed and
determinable contractual obligations to thifd parties by contractual date with no consideration given to
carlier call or prepayment features. Other obligations consist primarily of contractual obligations for capital
expenditures and other contractual obligat{ons.

antractual Obligations
’ 1 Year Over 1 Over 3 Over
or Through Through 5
Less 3Years 5Years _ Years Total
) ’ {Dollars in thousands)
T‘irpe deposits™ ... $1,357,.845 $34,258 $ 1,566 $ 45 $1,393,714
Deposits without a stated maturity@ : 687,553 s - - - 687,553
Repurchase agreements with customersl......... 41,003 - - - 41,003
Fe:deral funds purchased® ’ .......... 25,011 - - - 25,011
Other borrowings® ' .......... 112,636 7,949 61,842 1,012 183,439
Subordinated debenturest .................... ... 4,708 9429 9,416 166,702 190,255
Lease ODUGALONS w.vvvrvcvverrvrerrrsrvoerssen | - 504 630 440 2471 4,045,
Other obligations .......cccovvvvvvviiiiennncnnen. [ SO 12,535 1,264 - - 13,799
Total contractual obligations ........... '.l. .......... $2,241,795 $53,530 $73.264 $170,230 $2,538,819

(1} Includes unpaid interest through the conq{actual maturity on both fixed and variable rate obligations. The interest

associated with variable rate obligations i based upon interest rates in effect at December 31, 2006. The contractual
amounts to be paid on variable rate obligiitions are affected by changes in market rates. Future changes in market
interest rates could materially affect the contractual amounts to be paid.

(2) Includes interest accrued and unpaid thraugh December 31, 2006.
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Off-Balance Sheet Commitments. The following table details the amounts and expected matuntres of
significant off-balance sheet commitments as of December 31, 2006. Commitments|to extend credit Ido not
necessarily represent future cash requirements as these commitments may expire without being drawn upon.

~ Off-Balance Sheet Commitments | 1

1 Year Over 1 Through Over 3 Through | Over 5
or Less 3 Years 5 Years | | Years Total
' {Bollars in thousands)
Commitments to extend credit®™ ... $237,451 $132,328 $42,764 $37,374 $449,917
Standby letters of credit ............... 9,408 567 16 - | 9,991
Total commitments ............... $246,859 $132,895 $42,780 l $37,374 $459,908

(1} Includes commitments to extend credit under mortgage interest rate locks of $8:2 mit_lion that expire in one ye'ar or less.

Critical Accounting Policy
The Company’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses is considered

to be a critical accounting policy. Provisions to and the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses
are based on management’s judgment and evaluation of the loan and lease po:tfoholutrlrzmg Ob]ectlve and
subjective criteria. Changes in these criteria or the availability of new mformatron could cause the allowance
to be increased or decreased in future periods. In addition bank regulatory agencies, as part of their exammatlon
process, may require adjustments to the allowance for loan and lease losses based on their judgments and
estimates. See the “Analysis of Financial Condition” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
a detailed discussion of the Company’s allowance for loan and lease losses.

Forward-Looking Information

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of|Operations, other
filings made by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission and 'other oral and wrltten
statements or reports by the Company and its management, include certain forward -looking statements
including, without limitation, statements about economic, competitive and mter est rate conditions, plans,
goals, expectations and outlook for revenue growth, income, earnings per share net interest margin,
including the effects of the relatively flat to inverted yield curve and intense competrtron net interest income,
non-interest income, including seryice charges on deposit accounts, mortgage lendmg and trust mcome,
gains (losses) on sales of i mvestment securities and other assets, non-interest expense, including the cost
of opening new offices, efficiency ratio, anticipated future operating results and financral performance asset
quality, nonperforming loans and leases, nonperforming assets, net charge- -offs, past. 'due loans and leases,
interest rate sensitivity, including the effects of possible interest rate changes, future growth and expansion
opportunities, opportunities and goals for future market share growth, plans for new office openings, |
including chartering a new Oklahoma bank subsidiary, engaging in interstate branchmg and converting
loan production offices to full service banking offices, expected capital expendrtures, loan lease and deposrt
growth, changes in the Company’s investment securities portfolio and other similar forecasts and statements
of expectation. Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “mtcnd and similar expressrons.
as they relate to the Company or its management, identify forward-looking statements Forward-looking
statements made by the Company and its management are based on estimates, pro;ectlons beliefs and
assumptions of management at the time of such statements and are not guarantees ofifuture performance
The Company disclaims any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking ,tatement based on thé
occurrence of future events, the receipt of new information or otherwise.

Actual future performance, outcomes and results may differ materially from thoise expressed in forward-
looking statements made by the Company and its management due to certain risks, uncertainties and l
assumptions. Certain factors that may affect operating results of the Company 1nclude,‘but are not limited to,
the following: (1) potential delays or other problems in implementing the Company s growth and expansron
strategy including delays in identifying satisfactory sites, hiring qualified personnel obtaining regulatory or
other approvals, chartering a new Oklahoma bank subsidiary, engaging in interstate branchmg and convertmg
loan productron offices to full-service banking offices, obtaining permits and deSIgnlng constructing and
opening new offices; (2} the ability to attract new deposits, loans and leases; (3),interest rate fluctuations,
1nc1udmg changes in the yield curve between short-term and long-term rates; (4), competrtlve factors
and pricing pressures, including their effect on the Company’s net interest margin; (5) general economic
conditions, including their effect on investment securities values, the creditworthiness of borrowers and
lessees and collateral values; (6} changes in legal and regulatory requirements; (7 - adoption of new
accounting standards or changes in existing standards; and (8) adverse results in future litigation as well
as other factors described in this and other Company reports and statements. Should one or more of the
foregoing risks materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results or outcomes
may vary materially from those described in the forward-looking statements.
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summary] of Quarterly Results of
Operations, Common{Stock Market Prices and Dividends
1 Unaudited

2606 - Three Months Ended

Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
$33,781 $37,854 $41,467 $42,096
16,343 19,869 23,693 24,573
17,438 17,985 17,774 17,523
500 500 550 900
6,164 4,954 5,680 6,434
11,160 11,017 11,707 12,506
3,545 3,491 3,187 - 3,196
$ 8,397 $ 7,931 $ 8,010 $ 7,355
$ 0.50 $ 047 $ 048 $§ 044
0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
$ 34.44 $ 31.74 $ 29.96 $ 30.99
37.69 37.20 34.63 34.53
2005 - Three Months Ended
Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
$24,763 $26,849 $29,223 $32,046
8,304 10,038 11,763 14,201
16,459 16,811 17,460 17,845
500 500 800 500
4,371 4,913 5,164 4,804
9,495 10,008 10,270 10,306
3,513 3,503 3,483 3,460
$ 7,322 $ 7,713 $ 8,071 $ 8,383
$ 0.44 $ 046 $ 048 $ 0.50
0.08 0.09 0.10 0.10
$ 31.08 $ 30.58 $ 3237 $ 32.21
34.82 32.56 35.18 3832

See Note 14 to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of dividend restrictions.
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- Company Performance il

The graph below shows a comparison for the period commencing December 31, 2001 through December
31, 2006 of the cumulative total stockholder returns (assuming reinvestment of d1v1dends) for the common
stock of the Company, the S&P Smallcap Index and the NASDAQ Financial Inclex assummg a$100
investment on December 31, 2001.

‘Cumulative Return Comparison \

12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 12/31/|2006

—&—SML -(S&P Smallcap Index)

~&—- OZRK (Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.) \
—&— NDF (NASDAQ Financial Index) l

12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 127312006

OZRK (Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.) $100 $188 $366  $559 | | $613 $555
SML (S&P Smallcap Index) ~ $100 $ 85 $118 $145 | | $157 $180
NDF (NASDAQ Financial Index) ~ $100 $ 98 $12¢9 $149 | | $152 $174

|
l
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Report of Management on the Company’s
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

'l
February 19, 2007 i
!
J

Management of Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal contro! over financial reporting. Internal control
over financial reporting is a Process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purpféses in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to]permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally agcepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures are made onlylin accordance with authorizations of management
and directors; and (3) provifle reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthq"rized acquisition, use, or disposition of assets that
could have a material effectfon the financial statements.

Because of its inherent lilnitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect nlisstatements. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent

.. . J 1] y . .

limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control i§sues and instances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. Also, projections:lof any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
aré subject to the risk that;controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures

may deteriorate. |
Management of Bank offthe Ozarks, Inc., including the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, has
assessed the Company’s ir'}temal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006, based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting
described in “Internal Cor}irol - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizatiq'ns of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
assessment, managementlhas concluded that the Company’s internal control

over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006, based on the
specified criteria.

-Management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting has bg'en audited by Crowe Chizek and Company LLC, an
independent registered piiblic accounting firm, as stated in their report which

is included herein.

|

George Gleason ; Paul Moore .
Chairman and Chigf Executive Officer Chief Financial Qfficer and Chigf Accounting Qfficer




Report of Independent Registered Public Accox'lmti'ng Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Report of
Management on the Company’s Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Bank of the Ozarks,
Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsormg
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Bank of the Ozarks Inc.’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporcmg and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsrbllrtyns to express an |
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of. the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial repomng was mamtalned
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of lnternallcontrol over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the desrgn and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consrdered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis ior our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over ﬁnancral reporting is a process designed to prov1de reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnancral statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prmaples A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacnons and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance Ihat transactlons are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accord.mce wrth generally
accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made -
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provid
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized\acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the ﬁnanc1al statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reportmg ‘may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future penods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. malnltamed effective internal
control over financial repomng as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all materlal respects, based
on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. maintained,iin all material respects.
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, bared on/the COSO crlterla

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 0versrght
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Bank of the Ozarks, lnc as of December 31,
2006, and the related consolidatéd statements of income, stockholders’ equity : and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 26, 2007, expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.
Clrune %A/M/ 4‘“,@7 Ll

Lg']

Brentwood, Tennessee
February 26, 2007 :
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Report of Indéependent Registered Public Accounting Firm

T S —

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Bank of the Ozarks,! Inc. :
)

~

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Bank

- of the Ozarks, Inc. (the “Compiany”) as of December 31, 2006 and the related

consolidated statements of in@fome, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Companyjs management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion 'on these financial statements based on our audit.

We.conducted our audit in _lzgccordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perftSrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining}on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in tle financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, a:s well as ei\'laluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that{our audit provides a reasonable basis for

" our opinion. : ‘

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material'respects, the financial position of Bank of the
Ozarks, Inc. at December 31! 2006 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
accounting principles generqily accepted in the United States.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversif;ht Board (United States), the effectiveness
of Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.’s}internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, base'c_l on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Cpmmissioij and our report dated February 26, 2007,
expressed an unqiualiﬁed opinion thereon.

Cloart J/ugo/hw/% Ll

Brentwood, Tennessee
February 26, 2007
|
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
1

Board of Directors and Shareholders : \
Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. !

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Bank
of the Ozarks, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2005 and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash ﬂows
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005I These
financial statements are the respons1b111ty of the Company’s management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of thle Pllbhc
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plah and perform the audit to obtain reasonable’ assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material mlsstatement
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the!
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estlmates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion. ' '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred lolab0|ve
present fairly, in all'material respects, the consolidated financial posmon of
Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and the Consohdated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the penod
ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting prmc1ples generaily

accepted in the United States.
_é«m«ﬂf 4 ééw'?,LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 9, 2006

————— e —
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ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Interest earning deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

lnvestment securities - available for sale (“/

Loans and leases ‘
Alloxlvance for loan and lease losses
Net loans and leases

Prerrlises and equipment, net

Foreclosed assets held for sale, net

Accrued interest receivable

Banlk owned life insurance t

Intanglble assets, net C ‘

Other net ;
Total assets *

Dep031ts ‘
Demand non-interest bearing

Time
ITotal deposits |

Other borrowings ‘
Subordmated debentures

I Total liabilities
| .
Commitments and contingencies

St(lckholders equity:

Addltlonal paid-in capital
Retamed earnings !

| Total stockholders’ equity |

| . .

|
|
| | céN

3

Salvmgs and interest bearing transaction !
|

i

Reﬁurchase agreements with customers

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

'.
|
Bank! of the Ozarks, Inc.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

|

Accrued interest payable and other llablllthS

!

|

Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized;
no shares issued and outstanding 1

Common stock; $0.01 par value; 50,000 ‘000 shares authorized;
116,746,540 and 16,664,640 shares 1ssued and outstanding at
ﬁDecember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectllvely

Total liabilities and stockholders’ e urty

Sele accompanying notes to the consohda[ed ﬂnanc1al statements.

|

SOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2006

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 42,531
203
42,734
620,132
1,677,389
(17,699)
1,659,690
116,679
407

17,384
44,229
6,140
22,005
$2,529,400

$ 167,841
519,427
1,357,824
2,045,092
41,001
194,661
64,950
9,063
2,354,767

167
36,779
142,609

(4,922)
174,633
$2,529,400

2005

$ 40,379
207
40,586
574,120
1,370,723
(17,007)
1,353,716
88,786
356

13,802
42,397
6,402
14,717
$2,134,882

$ 143,456
509,660
938,527

1,591,643
35,671
304,865
44,331
8,969
1,985,479

167
34,210
117,600
(2,574)
149,403
$2,134,882
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' |
Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. |

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME \
|

Year Ended December 31,

2006 - 2005 2004

T ) i
{Dollars in thousands, exceTpt per share amounts)

Interest income:

Loans and leases $121,462 $ 87,768 $65,158
Investment securities:
Taxable 25,346 16,998 15,566
Tax-exempt 8,380 | 8, 1(|)4 |4,488
Deposits with banks and federal funds sold 10 | I11 ‘ 19
Total interest income 155,198 “112,881 85,231

Interest expense:

Deposits 65,348 31,314 16,796
Repurchase agreements with customers 1,312 li 450 I 446
Other borrowings 13,953 l9.84|8 §,134
Subordinated debentures 3,868 2,693 2,232
Total interest expense . 84,478 :4]4.305 24,608
Net interest income 70,720 6I§,5716 60|.623
Provision for loan and lease losses 2,450 2,300 3,330
Net interest income after provision b
for loan and lease losses 68,270 _ 66,276 57,293

T
Non-interest income:

Service charges on deposit accounts 10,217 ?,87? 91479
Mortgage lending income 2,918 3,034 31202
Trust income - 1,947 1,673 11476
Bank owned life insurance income 1,832 1,816 11213
Gains on sales of investment securities ‘ 3,917 21:’|: l?? 4
Other 2,400 . 2,641 1,991

Total non-interest income 23,231 19,252 18,225

Non-interest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits 27,506 23,477 20,]666

Net occupancy and equipment ' 7,030 6‘,254| 5,189

Other operating expenses 11,854 __10!,349' 11,750

Total non-interest expense 46,390 40,080, 37,605

. ' | l .

Income before taxes 45,111 45"4481 37,913

Provision for income taxes 13,418 1 -3,959‘ 12,030

Net income $ 31,693 $ 31,489 $25,883
i

Basic earnings per share $ 190 $ 1.89 $ 1|.58

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.89 $ 1.88 $ 1156

See accompanying notes to the consclidated financial statements.
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Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATLMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

| ;
|
!
|

Con'xprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized gains and losses on AFS investment
| securities, net of $913 tax effect j

Reclasmﬁcahon adjustment for gains and lo
lincluded in income, net of $172 tax effect!
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends paid, $0.30 per share
Issuance of 261,850 shares of common
stock for exercise of stock options
'[‘ax benefit on exercise of stock options
Compensanon expense under stock-based
compensatlon plans
Balances December 31, 2004
Colmprehenswe income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss: '
Unreahzed gains and losses on AFS investment
securities, net of $412 tax effect
Reclassification adjustment for gains and lasses
| included in income, net of $100 tax effec
Total comprehensive income |
Cash dividends paid, $0.37 per share
[ssuance of 170,250 shares of common
stock for exercise of stock options
Tax benefit on exercise of stock of)tlons
Compensauon expense under stock-based
compensauon plans
Balances December 31, 2005 |
Comprehenswe income: ’
Net income oo
Other comprehenswe income (loss)
| Unrealized gains and losses on AFS investment
securities, net of $21 tax effect .
| Reclassification adjustment for gains and losses
| included in income, net of $1,537 tax effect
Total comprehensive income ’
Cash dividends paid, $0.40 per share }
Issuance of 81,900 shares of common
[ stock for exercise of stock options '
'["a.x benefit on exercise of stock options ,
I
i

!
)
f
Balances - January 1, 2004 !
i

SE5

l

Compensation expense under stock-based
compensation plans
Balances - December 31, 2006

|

See accompanymg notes to the consolidated ﬂnanaal statements.

/ |

Accumulated
Additional . Other
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earmnings Loss Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

$162 $27,131 $ 71,293 $ (100) $ 98,486
- - 25,883 - 25,883

- - - (1,415) (1,415)

- - - (266) (266)
24,202

- - (4,914) - (4,914)
3 974 - - 977
- 2,397 - - 2,397

- 258 - - 258 -
165 30,760 92,262 {1,781) 121,406
- - 31,489 - 31,489

- - - - (639) (639)

- - - (154) (154}
30,696

- - (6,151} - (6,151)
2 972 - - 974
- 1,864 - - 1,864
- 614 - - - 614
167 34,210 117,600 (2,574) 149,403
- - 31,693 - 31,693
- - - 32 32

} - - (2.380) (2,380)
29,345

- - (6.684) - (6,684)
- 824 - - 824
- 880 - - 880
- 865 - - 865
$167 $36,779 $142,609 $(4,922) $174,633




Bank of the Ozarks, Inc.

|
|

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH. FLOWS

|
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 | 2004 |
(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities: _ _
Net income _ $ 31,693 $ 31,489 $ 25,883
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash .
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,024 2,770 2,467
Amortization 262 (262 274
Provision for loan and lease losses 2,450 2, 300 3, 330
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets 75 | 32 56
Net (accretion) amortization of investment securities (1,159) (980) 8
Gains on sales of investment securities (3.917) (213) (774)
Originations of mortgage loans for sale (173,689) (175,558) (177,966)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans for sale 170,485 176.439| 181,283
Losses {gains} on dispositions of premises and |
equipment and other assets 89 (567 (309)
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (352) | 21 597
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned |
life insurance (1,832) {1,816) {1,213)
Tax benefits on exercise of stock options (880) (1/864) (2,397)
Compensation expense under stock-based compensation plans 865 614 258
write-off of deferred debt issuance costs - l - 852
Changes in assets and liabilities: |
Accrued interest receivable ‘ (3,583) (5.241) (1,532)
Other assets, net (3.013) {551) 1,528
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 2,098 4,917 2,497
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,616 T 32,054 34,842
T
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment securities AFS 157,954 9,013 16,400
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities AFS 51,469 124,721 154,848
Purchases of investment securities AFS {256,389) {273,449) (243,411)
Net increase in loans and leases {306,556) (242,721) (231,896)
Purchases of premises and eqmpment (31,017) (26,966) (17,420}
Proceeds from disposition of premises and equnpment
and other assets 1,561 5,553 3,286
Assets acquired for lease under operatmg leases’ - (141) (1,120)
Cash paid for interests in unconsolidated investments {1,704) (674) (430
Cash paid for bank charter intangible - ‘ - (239)
Purchase of bank owned life insurance - L (18,000}
Net cash used in investing activities {384,682) (404,664} {337,982)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 453,450 211,713 317,866
Net (repayments ofy proceeds from other borrowings (110,205) 160,800 {1,476)
Net increase in repurchase agreements with customers 5,330 2,448 3,325
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures 20,619 - 15,464
Repayment of subordinated debentures | - (17,784)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 824 274 977
Tax benefits on exercise of stock options 380 1,364 2,397
Cash dividends paid ' (6,684) (6,151} (4,914)
Net cash provided by ﬁnancmg activities 364,214 371,648 315,855
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,148 T (962) 12,715
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 40,586 __41,548 28,833
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 42,734 $ 40, 40,;:86 $ 41,548

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Bank,l of the Ozarks, Inc. |
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

| l I : .
1. Sulmmary of Significant A(_:counu{lg Policies

Organization - Bank of the Ozarks, Inc. (the : Company") is a bank holding company headquartered in Little
Rock, Arkansas, which operates under the rules/and regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System. The Company owns a wholly-owned stae chartered bank subsidiary - Bank of the Ozarks (the “Bank”),
and four 100%-owned finance subsidiary busingss trusts - Ozark Capital Statutory Trust Il (“Ozark II"), Ozark
Capital Statutory Trust Ili (“Ozark "), Ozark Cgpital Statutory Trust [V (“Ozark V") and Ozark Capital
Statutory Trust V (“Ozark V") (collectively, the “[Trusts”). The Bank is subject to the regulation of certain federal

1

and state agencies and undergoes periodic exa Irnations by those regulatory authorities. The Bank has banking

offices located in northern, western, and centralJArkansas, Frisco, Dallas and Texarkana, Texas and loan production
ofﬁcesi in Little Rock, Arkansas, Charlotte, Nortil Carolina and Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Basis of presentation, use of estimates and principles of consolidation - The preparation of financial statements in
confofmity with accounting principles generally:accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the amouats reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes! Actual results could differ materially fronf those estimates. The consolidated financial statements include the

accou:nts of the Company and the Bank. Significant intercompany transactions and amounts have been eliminated.

Subsidiaries in which the Company has majority voting interest (principally defined as owning a voting or
economic interest greater than 50%) are consol{dated. Investments in companies in which the Company has
significant influence over voting and ﬁnancing;'}iecisions (principally defined as owning a voting or economic
interest of 20% to 50%) and investments in liniited partnerships and limited liability companies are generally

accounted for by the equity method of accountipg. Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability

companies in which the Company’s interest is so minor such that it has virtually no influence over operating
and financial policies are generally accounted fior by the cost method of accounting,

The Company, through investments in limited partnerships and limited liability companies, invests in low-income
housing and new market tax credit projects to [romote economic development and to contribute to the enhancement
of the communities it serves. Investments prinﬁlrily consist of real estate projects and providing working capital.
The carrying value of these investments was $§>.6 million and $6.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and
2005. As a limited partner or member in these}‘investments. the Company is allocated tax credits and deductions
associated with the underlying projects. Duringg 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company's aggregate federal and state
income tax liability was reduced by $330,000,/$235,000 and $712,000, respectively, as a result of the allocation
of such credits and deductions. The Company Cvaluates the carrying value of these investments for impairment,
which is generally based on total credits and deductions allocated to date and total estimated credits and deductions
remaining to be allocated. As a result of such gvaluation, the Company recorded impairment charges of $223,000,
$191,000 and $424,000, respectively, during 2006, 2005 and 2004.

The voting interest approach is not applicable for entities that are not controlled through voting interests or in
which the equity investors do not bear the residual economic risk. In such instances, Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB") Interpretation No. 46 (Revise:d) (“FIN 46R"}, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” provides
guidance on when the assets, liabilities and ac:tivities of a variable interest entity (“VIE") should be included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. [FIN 46R requires a VIE to be consolidated by a company if that
company is considered the primary beneﬁcian} of the VIE's activities. The Company has determined that the
100%-owned finance subsidiary Trusts are VIEs, but that the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the Trusts.
Accordingly, the Company does not consolidate the activities of the Trusts into its financial statements, but instead
reports its ownership interests in the Trusts ag other assets and reports the subordinated debentures as a liability
in the consolidated balance sheets. The distributions on the subordinated debentures are reported as interest
expense in the accompanying consolidated stdtements of income.

Cash and cash equivalents - For cash flow;purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts
due; from banks and interest bearing depositsfwith banks.

Investment securities - Management deterinines the appropriate classification of investment securities at the time
of purchase and reevaluates such designatio Yas of each balance sheet date. Investment securities are classified as
held to maturity (“HTM”"} when the Company] has the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity.
HTM investment securities are stated at amo;rtized cost.
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Investment securities not classified as HTM or trading and marketable equity sccurities not classified as trading
are classified as available for sale (“AFS"). AFS investment securities are stated at estlrnated fair value, wrth the
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as a separate comporent of stockholders equity and mcluded in
other comprehensrve income (loss). Fair values are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of d)mparable instruments.|The
Company also owns stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas {“FHLB"} and other equity securities that are
required under regulatory guidelines. These securities do not have readily determinable farr values and are carried
at cost. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, ithe Company has classified all of its invéstment securities as AFS.

Interest and dividends on investment securities, including the amortization of premultms and accretror‘r of
discounts through maturity, or in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the estrmated life of the secunty
are included in interest income. Realized'gains or losses on the sale of investment secunttes are recognized on the
specific identification method at the time of sale and are included in non-interest. lncome Purchases and sales of
investment securities are recognized on a trade-date basis.

Loans and leases - Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or payofF are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for 2ny charge -offs, deferred fees
or costs on originated loans, and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest on loanss is
recognized on an accrual basis and is calculated by using the simple interest method on darly balances of the
principal amount outstanding. Loan origination fees and costs are generally deferred and! recogmzed asan
adjustment to yield on the related loan.

Leases are classified as either direct financing leases or operating leases, based on the terms of the agreement.
Direct financing leases are reported as the sum of (i) total future lease payments to, be recerved net of unearned
income, and (ii) estimated residual value of the leased property. Operating leases are recorded at the cost of the
leased property, net of accumulated depreciation. Income on direct financing leases i is, 1ncluded in interest income
and is recognized on a basis that achievesa constant periodic rate of return on the outstandmg 1nvestment1
Income on operating leases is recognized as non-interest income on a straight-line t basrs over the lease term.

i |
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off- balan(e sheet financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. Such financra] mstruments are recorded in
the financial statements when they are funded. Related fees are recognized when earned

Mortgage loans held for sale are included in the Company’s loans and leases and totaled $6.7 million and
$3.5 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Mortgage loans heId for sale are carried at the
lower of cost or fair value. Gains and losses from the sales of mortgage loans are the difference between the
selling price of the loan and its carrying value, net of discounts and points, and are recognized when|the
loan is sold to investors and servicing rights are released. |

As part of its standard mortgage lending practice, the Company issues a writteln put option, in the form
of an interest rate lock commitment (“IRLC"), such that the interest rate on the mortgage loan is established
prior to funding. In addition to thé IRLC, the Company also enters into a forward sale commitment (“FSC") for
the sale of its mortgage loans originations in order to reduce its market risk on' such orrgrnatrons in process
The IRLC on mortgage loans held for sale and the FSC have been determined to be derivatives as deﬁned by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”} No. 133, “Accounting for Derrvatlve Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” as amended. Accordingly, the fair values of derivative' assets and liabilities for the
Company’s IRLC and FSC are based primarily on the fluctuation of interest rates between the date on Wthh
the IRLC and FSC were entered and year-end. The fair value of derivative assets and llablhtres were not
material at both December 31, 2006 and 2005. The notional amounts of loan commitments under the|IRLC
were $8.2 million and $8.4 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Allowance for loan and lease losses (“ALLL") - The ALLL is established through| a prov151on for such'losses
charged against income. All or portions of loans or leases deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the
ALLL when management believes that collectibility of some portion or all outstandlng principal is unlikely.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, of loans or leases previously charged off are credited to the ALLL.

The ALLL is maintained at a level management believes will be adequate to abisorb [losses on existing
loans and leases that may become uncollectible. Provision to and the adequacy of the |/‘\LLL are determrned
in accordance with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of alLoan » and SFAS No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies,” and are based on evaluations of the loan and lease portfoho utilizing |
objective and subjective criteria. The objective criteria primarily include an internal gradrng system and
specific allowances determined in accordance with SFAS No. 114. The Company also utilizes a peer group
analysis and an historical analysrs in an effort to validate the overall adequacy of its ALLL. The subjective
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criteri!a take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall
portfolio quality, review of specific problem l:'ans and leases, national, regional and local economic and
business conditions that may affect the borrowers’ or lessees’ ability to pay, the value of the property
securing the loans and leases and other relevant factors. Changes in any of these criteria or the availability
of new information could require adjustmentiiof the ALLL in future periods. No portion of the Company’s
ALLL/is restricted to any individual loan or lI¢ase or group of loans or leases, and the entire ALLL is available
to absorb losses from any and all loans and Ieases.

The Company's policy generally is to place" 2 loan or lease on nonaccrual status when payment of principal
or interest is contractually past due 90 days,'or earlier when concern exists as to the uliimate collection of
principal and interest. Nonaccrual loans or leases are generally returned to accrual status when principal and
interest payments are less than 90 days pastjdue and the Company reasonably expects to collect all principal
and interest. The Company may continue to accrue interest on certain loans and leases contractually past due
90 dzliys if such loans or leases are both welllsecured and in the process of collection.

All loans and leases deemed to be impaired are evaluated individually. The Company considers a loan

or ledse to be impaired when, based on currént information and events, it is probable that the Company will
be unable to collect ail amounts due accordirig to the contractual terms thereof. Substantially all nonaccrual
loans or leases and all loans or leases that have been restructured from their original contractual terms are
considered impaired. The majority of the Coinpany's impaired loans and leases are dependent upon collateral
for repayment. Accordingly, impairment is generally measured by comparing collateral value, net of holding
and selling costs, to'the current investment in the loan or lease. For all other impaired loans and leases, the
Company compares estimated discounted cash flows to the current investment in the loan or lease. To the
extent that the Company’s current investmelt in a particular loan or lease exceeds its estimated net collateral
value or its estimated discounted cash flows'}the impaired amount is specifically considered in the determination
of the allowance for loan and lease losses, or is immediately charged off as a reduction of the allowance for

loan'and lease losses. .

Tﬁe accrual of interest on impaired loans’and leases is discontinued when, in management’s opinion,
the borrower or lessee may be unable to meet payments as they become due. When interest accrual is
disc@ntinued, all unpaid accrued interest islteversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to
the extent cash payments are received.

Premises and equipment - Premises and gquipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortizatiop are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets. Depreciable lives'onr the major classes of assets are 12 to 45 years for buildings and
imp:rovements and 3 to 25 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized

over the shorter of the asset’s estimated useful life or the term of the lease. Accelerated depreciation methods
are |used for income tax purposes. Maintenance and repair charges are expensed as incurred.

Foreclosed assets held for sale - Real estite and personal properties acquired through or in lieu of loan
foreclosure and repossessions are initially Tecorded at the lesser of current principal investment or fair value
less estimated cost to sell at the date of foreclosure or repossession. Valuations of these assets are periodically
reviewed by management with the carrying value of such assets adjusted to the then estimated fair value net
of estimated selling costs, if lower, until digposition. Gains and losses from the sale of foreclosed assets,

repossessions and other real estate are re ‘orded in non-interest income, and expenses used to maintain the

[}

properties are included in non-interest expense.

llncome taxes - The Company utilizes th_ﬁ; asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes. Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon the difference between the values
of the assets and liabilities as reflected in the financial statements and their related tax basis using enacted
tax rates in effect for the year or years in ivhich the differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
As:changes in tax laws or rates are enacte'd, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the
provision for income taxes.

The Company and its bank subsidiary file consolidated tax returns. The Bank provides for income taxes
on:a separate return basis and remits to tlle Company amounts determined to be currently payable.

Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI"} - BOLI consists of life insurance purchased by the Company on a
qualifying group of officers with the Com[jany designated as owner and beneficiary of the policies. The yield
on BOLI policies is used to offset a portioil of future employee benefit costs. BOLI is carried at the policies’
cash surrender values with changes in cash surrender values reported in non-interest income.

i
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Intangible assets - Intangible assets consist of goodwill, bank charter costs and core deposit intangibles.
Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in busmess]
acquisitions. The Company had goodwill of $5.2 miltion at both December 31, 2006 and 2005. As required
by SFAS No. 142, the Company performed its annual impairment test of goodwrll as of October 1, 2006.
This test indicated no impairment of the Company’s goodwill. |

l
Bank charter costs represent costs paid to acquire a vacated Texas bank ch.irter and are being amortized
over 20 years. Bank charter costs totaled $239,000 at both December 31, 2006 and 2005, less accumulated
amortization of $33,000 and $21,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respertlvely

Core deposit intangibles represent premiums paid for deposits acquired via acqulsmon and are being
amortized over 8 to 10 years. Core deposit intangibles totaled $2.3 million at both December 31, 2006
and 2005, less accumulated amortization of $1 6 million and $1.4 million at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

The aggregate amount of amortization expense for the Company's core deposrt and bank charter
intangibles is expected to be $262 000 in 2007; $214,000 in 2008; $110,000 per year in years 2009 - 2010
and $56,000 in 2011. l

Earnings per share - Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing reported eallrmngs available to
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of shares outstandmg D11uted earnings per share is
computed by dividing reported earnings available to common shareholders by the we1ghted average: 'number
of shares outstanding after consideration of the dilutive effect of the Company' sputsﬁandmg stock opuons

Stock-based compensation - The Company has an employee stock option plan and a non- employee director
stock option plan, which are described more fuily in Note 11. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004) (“SFAS No. 123R") “Share-Based Payment,” to accodnt for these stock option
plans. SFAS No. 123R eliminated the alternative to use the intrinsic value metllod of, accounting for stock-
based compensation that was provrded for under the provisions of Accountmg'PrmCIples Board (“APB")
Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123R requires entities to measure the cost of employee services received m
exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. Such cost
is to be recognized over the vesting period of the award.

As allowed by SFAS No. 123R, the Company is using the modified prospectwe| application. Accordingly,
the provisions of SFAS No. 123R apply to all new awards granted subsequent to ‘December 31, 2005 and to
all awards outstanding on January 1, 2006 for which the requisite service had not been rendered. Since the
Company had previously adopted the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No| 148,
in accounting for its stock options, the adoption of SFAS No. 123R did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity. '

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized $865,000 of rllon interest expense as a
result of applying the provisions of SFAS'No. 123R to its stock option plans. For the years ended December
31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recognized $614,000 and $258,000, respectwely of non-interest expense
as a result of applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. |148' to its stock optlon
plans. The effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applled the fair value provisions
of accounting for all of its stock-based employee compensation prior to the. adoption of SFAS No. 123R and
SFAS No. 123, as amended, is provided in Note 11.

Segment disclosures - SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Entf‘l’[l)rlse and Related
. Information,” establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. As rhe Company operates
in only one segment - community banking - SFAS No. 131 has no impact on the Company s financial
statements or its disclosure of segment information. No revenues are derived from foreign countries and
no single external customer comprlses more than 10% of the Company's revenues.

Recent accounting pronouneements - In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC")
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Pl ior Year Misstatements
when Quanufymg Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 expresses the SEC
staff's views regarcllng the process of quantlfylng financial statement mrsstatements and is intended to
eliminate diversity in practice. The provisions of SAB No. 108 require registrants to quantlfy errors using
both a balance sheet and an income statement approach and evaluate whether elther approach results ml
quantifying a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors : are consistent, 1s
material. The provisions of SAB No. 108 were effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2000,
and did not have a material impact on the Company'’s financial position, results of operatlons or liquidity.
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In Sleptember 2006, the Emerging Issues Ta}sk Force (“EITF") reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-5 |
(“EITF 06-57), “Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance - Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized
in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No 85-4.” The provisions of EITF 06-5 require that a policy-
holder of a BOLI contract should (i) consider,separately any additional amounts or limitations included in the
contractual terms of the polrcy other than the]cash surrender value in determining the amount that could be
reallzed under the contract in accordance wrth Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, (ii) determine the amount that
could be realized under multiple contracts as‘summg surrender of each contract individually for situations
where surrender of all contracts provides the|policyholder an amount greater than does surrender of each
contract individually, and (iii) not discount the cash surrender value component to be realized under the
contract when contractual restrictions or the! abtllty to surrender a policy exist, as long as the policyholder
continues to participate in changes in the caS. surrender value. EITF 06-5 is effective for fiscal years
begmnmg after December 15, 2006, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
ﬁnancral position, resuits of operations or li luldlty

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value establishes a framework for measurmg fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements, with the intent of i 1ncreasmg consistency and comparability in fair value measures and
providing fi financial users with better 1nformzltlon about the extent to which fair value is used and their effect
on earmngs for the periods reported. The provrsrons of SFAS No. 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning
after|November 15, 2007. Management is cﬁrrently evaluating the impact, if any, that adoption of SFAS No.
157 will have on the Company’s financial posmon results of operations and liquidity.

In {]une 2006 the FASB issued lnterpretanpn No. 48 (“FIN 48"), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertalnty in income taxes recognized in financial statements by
prescrrbrng a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecogmtlon classification, interest andjpenalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for ﬁ*ical years beginning after December 15, 2006, and are not
expected to have a material impact on the Cpmpany s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

lnI February 2006 the FASB issued SFAS‘No 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments.”
SFAS No. 155 amends SFAS No. 133 and No 140 and was issued to improve financial reporting by eliminating
the exempnon from applying SFAS No. 133 to interest in securitized financial assets so that similar instruments
are accounted for in a similar manner. SFAS No. 155 also allows an entity to elect fair value measurement at
acqursmon at issuance, or when a previou Sly recognized financial instrument is subject to a remeasurement
event, on an instrument-by-instrument ba is, in cases in which a derivative would otherwise have to be
bifurcated. The provisions of SFAS No. 155! are effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006,
and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company'’s financial position, results of operations
or llqu1d1ty

On November 3, 2005, the FASB issued.Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 115-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than -Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” This FSP addresses the
determmatlon as to when an investment IS considered impaired, whether the impairment is other-than-
temporary and the measurement of an 1mparrment loss. It also addresses accountmg considerations
subsequent to the recognition of an other- than -temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures
about unrealized losses that have not been recogmzed as other-than-temporary. The guidance in FSP No.
FAS 115-1 applies to reporting periods bed ginning after December 15, 2005, and did not have a material
impact on the Company'’s financial positioii, results of operations or liquidity.

[n May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.” SFAS No.
154 replaces APB Opinion No. 20 and SFA.S No. 3 by changing the requirements for the accounting for and
reportlng ofa change in accountrng princi ple. SFAS No. 154 requires retroactive application to prior periods’
ﬁnanaal statemerits of changes in accounfrng principles, unless it is 1mpract1cable to determine either the
petiod-specific effect or the cumulative eff'ect of the change. The provisions of SFAS No. 154 were effective
for accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005, and did not have a material
1mpact on the Company’s financial posrtrc;n. results of operations or liquidity.

Reclassrﬁcatlons Certain reclassrﬁcatn ns of 2005 and 2004 amounts have been made to conform with
the 2006 financial statements presentatioq. These reclassifications had no impact on prior years’ net income
as, ' previously reported

l
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2. Investment Securities

The following is a summary of the amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities, all

of which are classified as AFS:

!
December 31, 2006

Gross | | Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in thousands) |
Mortgage-backed securities ...............ccoecvivennicninane $406,611 $1,014 $! (9,661)  $397,964
Obligations of states and political subdivisions .. 133,255 2,416 | (522) 135,149
Securities of U.S. Government agencies ................... 75,875 - | (1,345) 7I4'530
FHLB stock and other equity securities ................... 11,489 - ‘ - 11,489
Other SECUTILIES ..v.iveiieeiecireeiceiere e eeraeeras 1,000 - h - 1,000
Total investment SeCurities AFS ......c...cc.oooveen... $628,230 $3,430 $(11,528) $620,132
Decemtier 31) 2005 l
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized | Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in thousands) |
Mortgage-backed securities ........ erver e $266,722 $ 193 $1(8,375) $258,540
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ....... 227,286 4,919 (524) 231,681
Securities of U.S. Government agencies ................... 66,027 - {524) 65,503
FHLB stock and other equity securities ................... 16,020 - - 16,020
OthEr SECUTITIES ...v.vovevivsiseeeereriersieeeeseeiesssseiernseaanens 2,300 76 | | 2,376
Total investment securities AFS .......occooeerveenen. $578,355 $5,188 | § '(9,423) $574 120

|
The following shows gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value of investment securities AFS
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual mvestmenlt securltles have been in a

continuous unrealized loss position: |
Less than 12 months 12 months or more | " Total
Estimated Unrealized  Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair value  Losses Fair value Losses Fair Value  Losses
' (Dollars in thousands) l
December 31, 2006: _ ‘
Mortgage-backed securities ... $161,430  $2,131 $180,914  $7.530 | | $342,344 $ 9,661
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions ......... 18,022 176 14,387 346 32,409 522
Securities of U.S. Government ”
ALENCIES ..oeieiiiiiiii i, 9,739 80 64,791 1,265 74,530 1,345
Total temporarily |
impaired securities ......... $189,191 $2,387 $260,092 $9,141 $449,283 $11,528
December 31, 2005:;
Mortgage-backed securities .... $ 97,633  $3,124 $116,638 $5,251 $214,271 $ 8,375
Obligations of states and :
political subdivisions ......... 27,260 382 3,290 142 30,550 524
Securities of U.S. Government
AGENCIES ..o, 65,504 524 - - 65,504 524
Total temporarily _ ' |
impaired securities ......... $190,397 $4,030 $119,928 $5,393 $310,325 $ 9,423

In evaluating the Company’s unreahzed loss positions for other than-temporatry 1mpa1rment management
considers the credit quality of the issuer, the nature and cause of the unrealized ]oss and the severity and
duration of the impairments. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, management determmed the unreahzed losses
were the result of fluctuations in interest rates and did not reflect deteriorations of the credit quality of the
investments. Accordingly, management believes that all of its unrealized losses on, mvestment secuntles
are temporary in nature, and the Company has both the ability and intent to hold these investments until

maturity or until such time as fair value recovers above amortized cost.

1
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A maturity distribution of investment securities AFS reported at amortized cost and estimated fair value

as of December 31, 2006 is as follows: !
| ' Amortized Estimated
' x Cost Fair Value
!, (Dollars in thousands)

Due in one year or [€8s .......... b $ 38,902 $ 38,098

Due after one year to five yea’is ........................... 177,179 174,319

Due after five years to ten Years ............coovvunnns 300,508 294,314

Due after ten years «...ccoceeeee feriiiiiviinnnnininninns 111,641 113,401

: Total....oovecveereviiinieiee b $628,230 $620,132

|

Foﬁ purposes of this maturity distribution,fall investment securities are shown based on their contractual
maturity date, except FHLB stock and other ¢quity securities with no contractual maturity date which are
shown in the longest maturity category and j'nortgage-backed securities which are allocated among various

matu:rities based on an estimated repayment{schedule utilizing Bloomberg median prepayment speeds and
interest rate levels at December 31, 2006. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
issuqrs may have the right to call or prepay Jobligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Sales activities of the Company's investment securities AFS are summarized as follows:
| =' Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)
Sales proceeds ..........ceovn. S $157,954 $9,013 $16,400
Gross realized gains............ } SO $ 3,924 $ 213 $ 774
| Gross realized losses........... T (7) - -
| Net gains on sales.............. .S . $ 3917 $ 213 $ 774

! .
Investment securities with carrying value::s of $566.5 million and $514.5 million at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, were pledged to secure public funds and trust deposits and for other purposes required or

permitted by law.

3. Loans and Leases ’
~ The Company maintains a diversified loan and lease portfolio. The following is a summary of the loan
and lease portfolio by principal category: December 31,

PR—

! 2006 2005

Real estate: ‘ (Dollars in thousands)
Residential 1-4 family ........ | URURTOURP $ 281,400 $ 271,989
[ Non-farm/non-residential..............ccooinniiineienn. 433,998 375,628
i Construction/land development ..............covu.n. 514,899 366,827
l Agricultural ................... L 88,021 74,644
! Multifamily residential..f}.........ooccoovcrovirecrnns 50,202 31,142
{ Commercial and industrial®..........cccovevvveeeevnnn, : 148,853 109,459
CONSUMET c..overerarearreeans! U 86,048 78,916
’ Direct financing leases ... L...cc..ccocvinriinnrninnnn. 49,705 38,060
Agricultural (non-real estate) ..............cc.cocvonen. 22,298 20,605
; OLher .v.vvvveee e e 1,965 3,453

| Total loans and leasesN.......ooooerveeen, $1.677,380 $1.370,723

The Company’s direct financing leases include estimated residual values of $2.3 million at December 31,
2006 and $1.8 million at December 31, 2005, and are presented net of unearned income totaling $8.3 million
and $6.6 million at December 31, 2006 aﬂd 2005, respectively. The previous categories are also presented net
ofpurchase premiums and discounts and/deferred fees and costs that totaled $1.4 million and $1.5 million
at'December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Loans and leases on which the accrual of interest has been
discontinued aggregated $5.7 million and}$3.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Interest
income recorded during 2006, 2005 and 2004 for non-accrual loans and leases at December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 was $264,000, $126,000 and $i301,000, respectively. Under the original terms, these loans and
leases would have reported $486,000, $233,000 and $497,000 of interest income during 2006, 2005 -
arl'ld 2004, respectively. /

l
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Year Ended December 31,

4. Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses (“ALLL”)
The following is a summary of activity within the ALLL:

2006 ' | 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance - beginning of year ..........c.cocceceineinciincnne $17,007  $1s, 133 $13,820
Loans and leases charged off...........c.ccooeviveveicrnennnen, (2,065) | (1,784) (1,277)
Recoveries of loans and leases previously charged off.... 307 | 358 260|
Net loans and leases charged off ...............ocooiinin. (1,758) l (1,426) (1,017)
Provision charged to operating expense .............cceuecvvens 2,450 2,300 3,330

Balance - end of year .......ococceiveniiiinnnie e $17,699 $17 007  $16,133

Impairment of loans and leases having carrying values of $5.7 million and $3. 4 million (all of which were
on a non-accrual basis) at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, has been recogmzed in conformity with
SFAS No. 114. Substantially all impaired loans and leases had an allowance allocated' which totaled $885,000
and $487,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The average carrying value of impaired loans
and leases was.$3.9 million, $3.9 million and $3.4 million for the years ended I)ecember 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Real estate and other collateral securing loans havmg a cartying value of $1.5 million and $4.7 million
were transferred to foreclosed assets held for sale in 2006 and 2005, respectlvely The Company is not
committed to lend additional funds to debtors whose loans have been transferred to foreclosed assets.

5. Premises and Equipment o
The following is a summary of premises and equipment: Dece ml'aer 31,
2006 | 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

LANA ecoovrierceeersessecssasssrnssssssessasesssessseresssssssoos $ 53,837 | $!41,933
CONStruction in ProCess......cccvvmmrereevricrreerrreersnres 2,432 2,662

Buildings and improvements ...........c..occociviiinnnnn 53,371 39,462

Leasehold improvements ...........cccccoevivrecnvnnennenns 5,904 4,838

EQUIPMENT ...ooeiiniiiiiiecrienrc e e s 17,114 15,279

: 132,658 104,174

Accumulated depreciation............occcvvvvvvvrireennnenn. 15,979) (15,388)

Premises and equipment, net.........c..ccocceeeeennee, $116,679 $ 88,786

The Company capitalized $982,000, $446,000 and $144,000 of interest on construlctlon prolects during
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in occupancy expense is rent of
$696,000, $691,000 and $454 000 incurred under noncancelable operating leases in 2006, 2005 and [2004
respectively, for leases of real estate in connection with buildings and premises. iThese leases contain certain

* renewal and purchase options according to the terms of the agreements. Future amounts due under
noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2006 are as follows: $504,000 1n 2007 $361,000 in
2008, $269,000 in 2009, $220,000 in 2010, $220 000 in 2011 and $2,471,000, thereafter Rental income
recognized during 2006, 2005 and 2004 for leases of buildings and premises and!for equipment leased
under operating leases was $638,000, $624,000 and $500,000, respectively. |

6. Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum dénomination of $100, 000 was $877.9 million
and $622.8 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following is a summary of the scheduled maturities of all time deposits:
i December 31,

2006 ' | 2005
{Dollars in thousands) |
Up O ONE YEAr ..ccvuenrnenrsnns feevrrrerrsesrererrnserren $1,324,361 |$913,352
Over one to tWO YearS .......coovveeiiiiiiniiineicenninn 23,262 21,765
Over two to three YEALS oot 3,830 2,328
Over three to four years ...... rerenrreen et e rtne e 645 395
Over four to five years ..................................... 693 592
Thereafter .....cocvvvviveneeriienir s 33 . 95
Total time deposits......cccccevvveecrieerrceecriereenns $1,357,824 $938,527
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7. Boirrowings' : |

Short-term borrowings with original maturi. ies less than one year include FHLB advances, Federal Reserve
Bank (“FRB") borrowings, treasury, tax and lpan note accounts and federal funds purchased. The foliowing
is a summary of information relating to thesefshort-term borrowings: -

jl December 31,
, } 2006 2005
i (Dollars in thousands}
Average annual balance ........3% oo $221,300 $190,912
December 31 balance ......c....... oo, 133,427 243,442
Maximum month-end balance furing year .......... 280,784 263,367
Interest rate: , i
Weighted-average - year....do..ocooevniinnsnrienans 4,99% 3.38%
Weighted-average - Decemb?'t!r 3 [OOSR 523 410

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had FHLB advances with original maturities exceeding
one y:ear of $61.2 million and $61!4 million,l»respectively. These advances bear interest at rates ranging from
4.54% to 6.43% at December 31, 2006, with]a weighted-average rate of 6.25%, and are collateralized by a
blanket lien on a substantial portion of the Company’s real estate loans. Al December 31, 2006, the Bank
had $254 million of unused FHLB borrowing availability.

At December 31, 2006, aggregate annual Lnaturities and weighted-average rates of FHLB advances
with an original maturity of over one year were as follows:

J Weighted-Average
Maturity 1 Amount Rate
i(DolIars in thousands)
2007 = $ 216 6.16%
2008 217 6.15
2009 20 4.62
| 2010 60,021 6.27
: 2011 18 4.56
| Thereafter 742 4.54
| $61,234 6.25

8. Subordinated Debentures

Ofl June 18, 1999, Ozark Capital Trust (“©zark 17} sold to investors in a public underwritten offering $17.3
million of 9% cumulative tfust preferred sedurities (9% Securities”). The proceeds were used to purchase an
equal principal amount of 9% subordinated{debentures (*9% Debentures") of the Company. The 9% securities
and|the 9% Debentures were prepaid in fulllon June 18, 2004. In connection with this prepayment, the
Company recorded a charge of $852,000 tojwrite-off the remaining unamortized debt issue costs incurred

in connection with issuance of the 9% Securities and the 9% Debentures. :

On September 25, 2003, Ozark lii sold tc;] investors in a private placement offering $14 million of adjustable
| et § . . .
rate trust preferred securities, and on September 29, 2003, Ozark 11 sold to investors in a private placement

offering $14 million of adjustable rate trusy preferred securities (collectively, “2003 Securities”). The 2003
Securities bear interest, adjustable quarterty, at 90-day LIBOR plus 2.95% for Ozark Il and 90-day-LIBOR
plu$ 2.90% for Ozark 1. The aggregate $2§ million proceeds from the 2003 Securities were used to purchase
an equal principal amount of adjustable rate subordinated debentures of the Company that bear interest,
adjustable quarterly, at 90-day LIBOR plus: 2.95% for Ozark 11l and 90-day LIBOR plus 2.90% for Ozark 11
(coltectively,“2003 Debentures”). The wei shted-average interest rate on the 2003 Securities and the 2003

1

Debentures was 8.29% at December 31, 2006.

On September 28, 2004, Ozark IV sold tq investors in a private placement offering $15 million of adjustable
raté trust preferred securities (2004 Secui;ities"). The 2004 Securities bear interest, adjustable quarterly,
at 90-day LIBOR plus 2.22%. The $15 million proceeds from the 2004 Securities were used to purchase an
equal principal amount of adjustable rate sﬁbordinated debentures of the Company that bear interest, adjustable
quarterly, at 90-day LIBOR plus 2.22% (2004 Debentures™). The interest rate on the 2004 Securities and
the 2004 Debentures was 7.59% at December 31, 2006.

On September 29, 2006 Ozark V sold tolinvestors in a private placement offering $20 million of adjustable
raﬂe trust preferred securities (“2006 Secﬁ"rities"). The Securities bear interest, adjustable quarterly, at 90-day
LIBOR plus 1.60%. The $20 million proceeds from the 2006 Securities were used to purchase an equal principal




amount of adjustable rate subordinated debentures of the Company that bear interest, adjustable quarterly,
at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.60% (“2006 Debentures”). The interest rate on the 2006 Securities and thé 2006
Debentures was 6.96% at December 31, 2006. .

In addition to the issuance of these adjustable rate securities, Ozark I and Olzark' III coliectively sold $0.9
million, Ozark IV sold $0.4 million and Ozark V sold $0.6 million of trust conimon equrty to the Company
The proceeds from the sales of the trust common equity were used, respective ly, to purchase $0.9 mrllron of
2003 Debentures, $0.4 million of 2004 Debentures and $0.6 million of 2006 Debentures issued by the Company

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had an aggregate of $64.9 mrlllon and $44.3 mrllron
respectively, of subordinated debentures outstanding and had an asset of $1.9 mrlhon and $1.3 mrlhon
respectively, representing its investment in the common equity issued by the Irusts The sole assetslof the
Trusts are the adjustable rate debentures and the liabilities of the Trusts are the 2003 Securities, the 2004
Securities, the 2006 Securities and the aggregate trust common equity of $1.9 mrlhon At both December 31,
2006 and 2005, the Trusts did not have any restricted net assets. The Company has, through vanous
contractual arrangements, fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of the Trusts with respect to
the 2003 Securities, the 2004 Securities and the 2006 Securities. Additionally, there are no restrrctrons on
the ability of the Trusts to transfer funds to the Company in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances.

The 2003 Securities and the 2003 Debentures mature in September 2033 and the‘2004 Securities and
the 2004 Debentures mature in September 2034 (the thirtieth anniversary date of each issuance). The 2006
Securities and the 2006 Debentures mature December 15, 2036. However, the e securities and debentures
may be prepaid, subject to regulatory approval, prior to maturity at any time on 'or after September 25 and
29, 2008 for the two issues of 2003 Securities and 2003 Debentures, September 28,12009 for the 2004
Securities and 2004 Debentures, December 15, 2011 for the 2006 Securities and 2006 Debentures, or at an
earlier date upon certain changes in tax laws, investment company laws or regulatory capital requirements.

9. Income Taxes
The following is a summary of the components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes:

Year Enlded December 31,
2006 2005 2004

{Dollars in thousands})

Current:
Federal ..o $12,100  $11,574  $ 9,922
SLALE ..o seeeen. et eser e ee ettt eeeesee s 1,670 | 2,364 1,511
Total current ...........c...... erertsesiebtessessirteseatarrnneerannrns 13,770 13,938 11,433
Deferred: . | 1
Federal ..o (412) | 224 754
SLALE ..vvvvverveeecrenreeeeeses s es e I 60 | 1(3) (157)
Total deferred ..........ccevvvinvireenreccneereenerc e, (352) 21 597
Provision fOr INCOME LAXES ....cvverevirvererrererrrrerenesseneeenns $13,418 $13,959  $12,030

|
The reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and effective mcomwe tax rate is as follows:
Year: Ended December 31,

‘ 2006 - 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate .........cocceveviierecreeennns 35.0% 35 0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from: k
State income taxes, net of federal benefit.................. 25 ‘ 3.4 2.3
Effect of non-taxable interest income....................... ~ (5.6) (5. 8) (4.0)
Effect of BOLI and other non-taxable income........... (1.6} (1.5) (1.1)
OLNET, 1EL ..ot ess s {0.6) {0.4) (0.5)
Effective income tax rate ...........covvevervcmnnennees 29.7% 30.7% 31.7%

Income tax benefits from the exercise of stock options in the amount of $0.9 million, $1.9 million and
$2.4 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital.

|
At December 31, 2006, income taxes refundable of $1.9 million were included in iother assets. Income taxes
payable of $1.7 million at December 31, 2005 were included in accrued lnterest payable’and other liabilities.
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The types of temporary differences betweeﬁ the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial
reporting amounts that give rise to deferred irfcome tax assets and liabilities and their approximate tax

effects are as follows:

|
! | December 31,
i { 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: : {Dollars in thousands)
Allowance for loan and lease loss: S e eeeire e eeneaer ettt $6,942 $6,618
Stock-based compensation underlihe fair value method .................. 673 386
Unrealized depreciation of investrilent securities AFS.......c..coevvreens 3,176 1,663
Gross deferred tax assets ................ e 10,791 8,667
Deferred tax liabilities: i
Accelerated depreciation on premises and equipment ........c.c.coooevee 4,116 4,067
Direct financing leases !.............. ;SOOI 897 1,081
FHLB stock dividends ................J ] TR U PO PR TRORUPPN 1,034 741
Other, net ...........coccvne. Do) L RO OOURRT PO 590 454
Gross deferred tax liabilities ‘i ................................................... 6,637 6,343
Net deferred tax asSets ...cce...orur i $4,154 $2,324

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a qualified retirempent plan (the “401(k) Plan”) with a salary deferral feature
designed to qualify under Section 401 of thelinternal Revenue Code (the “Code”). The 401 (k) Plan permits
the employees of the Company to defer a portion of their compensation in accordance with the provisions of
Section 401(k) of the Code. Matching contriutions may be made in amounts and at times determined by the
Company. Certain other statutory limitationswith respect to the Company's contribution under the 401 (k)
Plan also apply. Amounts contributed by theJCompany for a participant will vest over six years and will be
held in trust until distributed pursuant to the terms of the 401 (k) Plan.

Contributions to the 401 (k) Plan are invested in accordance with participant elections among certain
investment options. Distributions from participant accounts are not permitted before age 65, except in the
event of death, permanent disability, certain]ﬁnancial hardships or termination of employment. The Company
made matching cash contributions to the 40 (k) Plan during 2006, 2005 and 2004 of $483,000, $419,000
and |$465’000‘ respectively.

Prior to January 1, 2005, all full-time emjloyees of the Company were eligible to participate in the 401 (k)
‘Plan| Beginning January 1, 2005, certain key employees of the Company have been excluded from further
salary deferrals to the 401(k) Plan, but maﬂ make salary deferrals through participation in the Bank of the
Ozarks, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan, an unfunded deferred compensation
arrangement for the group of employees designated as key employees, including certain of the Company’s
executive officers, was adopted by the Company's board of directors on December 14, 2004 and became
effective January 1,/2005. Under the terms of the Plan, eligible participants may elect to defer a portion of
their compensation. Such deferred compensation will be distributable in lump sum or specified installments
upon separation from service with the Com'f;any or upon other specified events as defined in the Plan. The
Company has the ability to make a contribution to each participant’s account, limited to one half of the first
6% of compensation deferred by the participant and subject to certain other limitations. Amounts deferred
under the Plan are to be invested in certainfapproved investments {excluding securities of the Company or
its affiliates). Company contributions to the: Plan in 2006 and 2005 totaled $84,000 and $64,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had Plan assets, along with an equal amount of liabilities,
tota'ling $784,000 and $337,000, respectively, recorded on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

11! Stock-Based Compensation |
The Company has a nonqualified stock gption plan for certain key employees and officers of the Company.

This plan provides for the granting of nonqualified options to purchase up to 1.5 million shares of common
stock in the Company. No option may be gianted under this plan for less than the fair market value of the
common stock, defined by the plan as theggverage of the highest asked price and the lowest reported bid
price, on the date of the grant. While the vedting period and the termination date for the employee plan options
is determined when options are granted, alljsuch employee options outstanding at December 31, 2006 were
issiied with a vesting period of three yearsiand expire seven years after issuance. The Company also has-a
nonqualified stock option plan for non-employee directors. The non-employee director plan calls for options
to purchase 1,000 shares of common stoc]i to be granted to each non-employee director the day after the
annual stockholders’ meeting. These optiq:ns are exercisable immediately and expire ten years after issuance!
All shares issued in connection with options exercised under both the employee and non-employee director

stoick option plans are in the form of newly-issued shares. :

|
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended DPc!ember 31, 2006:
Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remammg Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
Options Price/Share ~ (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding - January 1, 2006 ........ 475,400 $19.26
Granted ......c.cocovveveeveivennenn, RO 111,800 32.29
Exercised ...cccooorivviereieeee e (81,900) 10.06
Forfeited .......ccooeveevenveienirenecennn (15,750} 28.54
Outstanding - December 31, 2006... 489,550 $23.43 4.8 $4,810(0
Exercisable - December 31, 2006 .... 230,200 $13.13 1.6 $4!633(1
(1) Based on average trade value of $33.255 per share on December 29, 2006.

Intrinsic value for stock options is defined as the difference between the current market value and the
exercise price. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006, 2005'and 2004 was $2.0 million,
$4.8 million and $6.1 million, respectively.

Options to purchase 111,800 shares, 128,200 shares,and 73,100 shares, reslpectlvely. were granted during
2006, 2005 and 2004. The weighted-average fair value of options granted durmg 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
$9.10, $10.62 and $9.28, respectively. The fair value for each option grant is estlmated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses the assumptions shown below The Company uses the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant to determine the I'lSk ifree interest rate. The expected
dividend yield is estimated using the current annual dividend level and recent price of the Company's common
stock at the date of grant. Expected stock volatility is based on historical volat ilitiesof the Company'’s common
stock, and expected life of the options represents management’s estimate of thelperlod of time the options are
expected to be outstanding.

The weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing lnodel for the years indicated

were as follows:
2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate ..........ooeeveeervvvennens 4.76% 4.27% 3.31%
Expected dividend yield ......................... 1.23% 1.16% 1,13%
Expected stock volatility .............ccccceeec. 26.2% 30.7% - 36.1%
Expected life (years) .....ocovveerverveerennnes 5.0 5.0 ‘ 5.0
I

The total fair value of options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock that vested during
the years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0.6 m11110n $0.3 million and $0.2 mllhon respectively.
Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock-based compensatlon was $1.5 million
at December 31, 2006 and is expected to:be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.2 years.

The following table illustrates the effects on net income and EPS for the years mdlcated had the Company
applied the fair value provisions of accounting for its stock options granted pricr lto January 1, 2003:

Year Ended December 31,
2006, | | 2005 2004
{Dollars in thous?nds, except per share data)
Net inCoMme, a5 TEPOITEA ....coveeriverieerreeeieerieeireraeesiresreestsenseasareenaes $31,693 $31,489 $25,883
Add: Total stock-based compensation expense, o
net of related tax effects included in reported net income ............... 526 | 373 156
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under .
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects .... (52())| (393) (225)
Pro forma net iNCOME .......cccooiiiiiii e eerer e e e aean e sanr e eenes $31,693 | $31,469 $25,814
Earnings per share: _ R
BasiC - aS TEPOTIEA ......vvviveiiiiiiiecieic et $ 1.90 $ 1.89 $ 1.58
| Basic - pro forma .................. et 1.90 1.89 157
. Diluted - @S reported ...........ccovveriiererineiieeniene et $ 1.89 $ 1.88 $ 1|.56
| Diluted - Pro fOIMA ........ceveeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eesee e s eeeeee s s ees oo 1.89 1.88 k55
| :
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instrumlents with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments

to extend credit and standby letters of credit. |

The|Company's exposure to credit loss in t}‘e event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit {s represented by the contractual notional amount of those
instruments. The Company has the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations
as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. | '

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since these commitments may expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates
each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon e)i{tension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
counterparty. Collateral held varies but may ipclude accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and

equipment, and income-producing commerciil properties.

I . . . .
The Company had outstanding commitmer]ts to extend credit, excluding mortgage IRLCs, of $441.7 million
and $192.1 million at December 31, 2006 ari_d 2005, respectively. The commitments extend over varying
periods of time with the majority to be disbutsed or to expire within a one-year period.

[

Outstanding standby letters of credit are c:ontingent commitments issued by the Company generally to
guarantee the performance of-a customer in '!hird party borrowing arrangements. The term of the guarantee
generally is for a period of one year. The maximum amount of future payments the Company couldbe
required to make under these guaraniees at:December 31, 2006 and 2005 is $10.0 million and $6.3 million,
respectively. The Company holds collateral tq support guarantees when Qet?med necessary. The total of _
collateralized commitments at December 31 ! 2006 and 2005 was $7.4 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

|
13. Related Party Transactions

The Company.has had, in the ordinary course of business, lending transactions with certain of its officers,
directors, director nominees and their relatefl and affiliated parties (related parties). All lending transactions
with{such related parties have been in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral, as tthe prevailing for comparable transactions with other loan
customers of the Company, and have not ingluded more than the normal risk of collectibility associated with
the Company'’s other lending transactions of other unfavorable features. The aggregate amount of loans to
such related parties at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $39.8 million and $24.5 million, respectively. New
loans and advances on prior commitments inade to such related parties were $22.1 million, $3.5 million and
$2.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Repayments of loans made
by such related parties were $7.6 million, $9.6 million and $2.3 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, during 2006 and 2005, advances totaling $0.8 million and $12.9
million, respectively, were added to, and duting 2004 advances totaling $4.8 million were removed from, the
Company’s related party loans as a result of changes in the composition of the Company’s related parties.

14.‘| Regulatory Matters

The Company is subject to various reguldtory capital requirements administered by federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital :iequirements can initiate certain mandatory and discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, culd have a direct material effect on the Company's financial
condition and results of operations. Under'tapital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company mugt meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Company’s assets, liabiliti.és and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Compiny's capital amounts and classification are also subject to
quzlllitative judgments by the regulators abfout component risk weightings and other factors.

Federal regulatory agencies generally reqjuire the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum Tier 1
and total capital to risk-weighted assets off4.0% and 8.0%, respectively, and Tier 1 capital to average
quarterly assets (leverage ratio) of at least}3.0%. Tier 1 capital generally consists of common equity,
retained earnings, certain types of preferréd stock, and trust preferred securities, subject to limitations,
and excludes goodwill and varigus intangible-assets. Total capital includes Tier 1 capital, any amounts
of trust preferred securities excluded from{Tier 1 capital, and the lesser of the ALLL or 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets. At December 31, 2006 the Company's and the Bank’s Tier 1 and total capital ratios
ang their leverage ratios exceeded minimdm requirements.

I !
I ‘ |
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The actual and required capital amounts and ratics of the Company and the
and 2005 were as follows: - |

Banlk at December 31, 2006

|  Required 2
) To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequ.u:y Prompt Correcuve
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount | Ratio
‘ (Dollars in thousands)
At December 31, 2006: '
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
COMPANY ..eeeervveeneeererrrrere e - $254,114 12.76%  $159,326 8.00% $199,159 | 10.00%
BanK ....coocveriveecrrieencn i . 214,515 10.83 158,453  8.00 198,066 | 10.00
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets): | ]
Company.......cocecevieeerivencncncenineene. 233,266 11.71 79,663 |4.00| 119,494 | 6.00
Bank ......cooeiviniiiriiiini e .. 196,816 994 79,227 4.00 118,840 | 6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets): I 1
COMPANY ...ccoviiimiininie e 233,266 9.39 74,564  3.00 124,273 | 5.00
Bank .......ccoovvveeiiieccereeeeeea 196,816 7.95 74,225  3.00 123,709 | 5.00 .
At December 31, 2005: | | l
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets): i
COMPANY et eeee s $205,582 13.02% $126,350 8.00% $157,937 |10.00%
BADK ..o 176,979 11.25 125,810  8.00| 157,262 |10.00
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets): | 1
COMPANY .eovviriiiiniiiinns e, 188,575 11.94 63,175 4.00 94,762 | 6.00
Bank ....covvieeriieeee e, 159,972 10.17 62,905 4.00 94,357 | 6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets): |
COMPANY verrrrrrrereirrerreneriensrressieeersrnenns 188,575 9.11 62,083 3.00 103,472 | 5.00
Bank .....oooeeeiiieniiiccinecn e 159,972 7.75 61,908 3 00 103,181 5.00

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the most recent notification from the regulators categorized the
Company and the Bank as well capltallzed under the regulatory framework for, prompt corrective actlon
There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the

Company'’s or the Bank’s category.

As of December 31, 2006, the state bank commissioner's approval was requrred before the Bank could
declare and pay any dividend of 75% or more of the net profits of the bank aftenall taxes for the current year
plus 75% of the retained net profits for the immediately preceding vear. At December 31, 2006 and 2005
$38.8 million and $37.5 million, respectively, was available for payment of dividends by the Bank without

the approval of regulatory authorities. '

Under FRB regulation, the Bank is also limited as to the amount it may loan to its affiliates, including the
Company, and such loans must be collateralized by specific obligations. The maxrmum amount available for
loan from the Bank to the Company is limited to 10% of the Bank's capital and surplus or approximately

$19.7 million and $16.3 million, respectrvely, at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The Bank is required by bank regulatory agencies to maintain certain minimum balances of cash or non-
interest bearing deposits primarily with the FRB. At December 31, 2006 and 2005 these required balances

ageregated $8.1 million and $6.6 million; respectively. _ |
15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of trrlranaal instruments.

Cash and due from banks - For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate

of fair value.

Investment securities - For securities held for investment purposes, fair values are based on quoted ‘market
) prrces or dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market

prices for similar securities or the carrying amount.

Loans and leases - The fair value of loans and leases is estimated by drscoumrng the future cash flows
using the current rate at which similar loans or leases would be made to borrowers or|lessees with srmrlar

credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.
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Bank owned life insurance - The carrying amgunt is the cash surrender value, which approximates fair value.

| . . e . | ! . . .
Deposit liabilities - The fair value of demaqgl deposits, savings accounts, money market deposits and other
transa’étion accounts is the amount payable o} demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed maturity
certificates is estimated using the rate currentjy available for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Other borrowed funds - For these short—teri'n instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate
of fair'value. The fair value of long-term inst_r'.uments is estimated based on the current rates available to the
Company for borrowings with similar terms ajld remaining maturities.

Subordinated debentures - The c:arrying values of these instruments approximate their fair values as the
interest rates on these instruments-adjust qudrterly based on 90-day LIBOR.

! . - . . .
Accrued interest and other liabilities - The_(‘:arrymg amounts of accrued interest receivable and payable
and other liabilities approximate their fair values.

Off—jbalance sheet instruments - The fair v?lues of commercial loan commitments and letters of credit
are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining
terms|of the agreements. The fair values of IRLC and FSC derivative assets and liabilities are based primarily
on the fluctuation of interest rates between tile date on which the IRLC and FSC were entered and year-end.
The fair values of these off-balance-sheet indtruments and these derivative assets and liabilities were not
significant at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Thel: fair values of certain of these instruments were calculated by discounting expected cash flows,
which contain numerous uncertainties and iffvolve significant judgments by management. Fair value is
the estimated amount at which financial assés or liabilities could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Because no market exists for certain of
these: financial instruments and because management does not intend to sell these financial instruments,
the Company does not know whether the fait values shown below represent values at which the respective
financial instruments could be sold individu;ally or in the aggregate.

The following table presents the estimated| fair values of the Company’s financial instruments:
2006 2005

Carrying Estimated  Carrying Estimated
| Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets: {Dollars in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents ...........c..o.... 8o $ 42,734 $ 42,734 $ 40,586 $ 40,586
Investment securities AFS...........cccoveon. . 620,132 620,132 574,120 574,120
lloans and leases, net of ALLL............ SO 1,659,690 1,637,170 1,353,716 1,333,658
Accrued interest receivable ................... | SO 17,384 17,384 13,802 13,802
Bank owned life insurance.............co..... | S 44,229 44,229 42,397 42,397
Financial liabilities: fl
Demand, NOW, savings and money market '
| account deposits ............ccovrvrrmrinnnnend ; ISR $ 687,268 $ 687,268 $ 653,116 § 653,116
Time AEPOSILS .v.vovvivrerreriererssereecerreensd | 1,357,824 1,354,908 938,527 932,782
Repurchase agreements with customers}............... 41,001 41,001 35,671 35,671
Other bOrrowings ........c...cc.... SSURRII . RSOV 194,661 197,564 304,865 308,729
Subordinated debentures .............o oo 64,950 64,950 44,331 44,331
Accrued interest payable and/other liabilities ...... 9,063 9,063 8,069 8,969

: i
16.:Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental cash flow information is a follows:

l
C!ash paid during the period for:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

TTEIEEECSE +vvvveeeeerreeensseereeeeenanshereresisssseee ettt vrrseatteresiserterassnraseees $82,653 $43,191 $24,241

([NCOME LAXES .vvvvervvvvssssssssonnes vl s 15,415 8,887 9,384
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

ITransfer of loans to foreclosed assets héld for sale..........c.......... 1,504 4,664 2,118

Loans advanced for sales of foreclosed ASSELS .....oveverrrerirriirenenes 168 265 1,388

Net change in unrealized gains and los’:ies on _ _
investment securities AFS .............. . SOV (3,863) (1,305) (2,766)

[
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17. Other Operating Expenses

The following is a summary of other operating expenses:
& y P 8 exp Year Ended December 31,

2006 | 2005 2004

) . (Dollars in thousands) |
Postage and supplies .........ccccccciveireiiiienciesinne $ 1,910 |% 1,620 $ 1,660
Telephone and data lines.........cccooovviiinein i 1,651 . 1,371 1,139
Advertising and public relations.............cc i 1,545 1,325 1,434
Professional and outside services.........cccovvrvviviennennne 1,129 886 823
SOfTWATE ..oecoevrvreeicecrreersscnrrrrresanrreesessssrnreerssrsnnnassrssrnsers 1 ,068 823 662
Write-off of deferred debt issuance costs ........c.cccoverineens - 852
(011 =) (OO OSSO O OO P UUP P U USUPRUPIUPPPRROPPOON 4, 551 4,324 5,180
Total other operatlng EXPENSES ucvvivieriieeniies b $11,854 510,349  $11,750

18. Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 | 2005 2004

Numerator: {In thousands, jexcept per share amournts} |
Net inCome .....oeveveieeeniine ettt abe e b etn et et berr et e $31,693 $31 l489 $25,883
Denominator: ' T |
Denominator for baSIC EPS - welghted average shares ... 16,723 | 16,640 16,390
Effect of dilutive securities - stock options .................. 80 \ |126 245
Denominator for diluted EPS - weighted-average |
shares and assumed conversions ........c..ccccoeeeneenn 16,803 | 16, 766 16,635
BaSIC EPS ..oorreeeremiririiieres s v rveeiassan $ 190 $ 1.89 $_ 1.58
Diluted EPS .....oooeiiiiieenieesieeeieee e e e e s $ 189 $ 188 $ 1.56

Options to 1;()urchase 120,750 shares, 85,400 shares and 61,500 shares, respecuvely. of the Company s
common stock at a weighted-average exercise price of $34.86 per share, $35 42 per|share and $28.63
per share, respectively, were outstanding durmg 2006, 2005 and 2004, but were not included in the|
computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise price was greater than|the average market price

of the common shares and inclusion would have been antidilutive. | |
19. Parent Company Financial Information |
. The following condensed balance sheets, income statements and statements of l.ash flows reflect the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows for the parent company: |
Condensed Balance Sheets |
l December 31,
2006, 2005
Assets : i (Dollars in thousands)
0 T | ST U SRR S $ 31,677 $ 25,436
Investment in consolidated bank subsidiary ..........ccoeeviviinnininns 196,941 162,663
Investment in unconsolidated Trusts ..........cccoveverieninnen. rrereneras 1,950 1,331
Other INVESLMENTS, NEL ..vvvieeiiiiiiiieeiiee et eeenbieessieeseeaessemtasareaens 4,348 3,160
Land for future branch Site€ .........cccccvevvrveerrienirierreenvrener e oreeesanes |1,852 1,853
Excess cost over fair value of net assets acquired .........ccooveeene, 1,092 1,092
Income taxes refundable ..........ooveeireie e 1,411 -
COLRET, ML .veeeeeiice e ter e er e etce et ree s e et e e s s st oreeseanene 828 477
TOLAL ASSELS 1ovveecieiiiiriiiiretceeeiieiiririres e eeees s s e rsesntrserraaesesesinannes $440 099 $196,012
Liabilities and Stockholdets’ Equity |
Accounts payable and other liabilities ..............ccovviiiniininnnnnn, $ 41 % 93
Accrued interest payable ..o iviieenniniice l 475 347
INCOME LAXES PAYADIE ....oovcverrererrcteeienresenteeesevenenn s tesrsnessaessesenas E 1,838
Subordinated debentures ..........ccccceociiiciiniiin e, 64,950 44,331
Total LHAbAlIEIES ...ccveeivveeireecieriiee e eee e esa e ranenne 65,466 46,609
Stockholders’ equity: ]
CoOmMMON SEOCK ......coovvrireiriiriieces et ( 167 167
Additional paid-in capital........ccccovvnvverinenece e 36,779 34,210
Retained earnings ........ccccccoeiniiiiinieicini s 142,609 117,600
Accumulated other comprehensive l0SS.......c.cccvviviiiiiiiiiiininns (4,922) (2,574)
Total stockholders' equity .........ccoocereecieniiincneceece e 174,633 149,403
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ..........cccoevviiniinnne $2 40 099 $196,012
62 ‘
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| |
(l,ondense Statements of Income
4 Year Ended December 31, .|
; 2006 2005 2004 |
(Dollars in thousands) ‘
Income: | l _ i,

Dividends from Bank ..........c.c.oee.e. hrterereeeins i SUSUUUUUURTRRTIN $ 8,300 $ 6,100 $ 4,000 ]

Dividends from TrUSES .........cvvrnnee e ] ST 116 81 66 ‘

OLher Lo Lo 374 220 93

TOLa] INCOMNE .vvvvvvrreersssrevsernerrerecee S RO 8,790 6,401 4,159-
Expenses i
lnterest ........................................... SUUUURRRITS | SRR 3,867 2,693 2,232
Write-off of deferred debt issuance COSES vvere e, - - 852 !
Other operating expenses OO AU S 2,108 1,911 1,700
TOLAl EXPETISES -.vvovvrerrrrresnessrssssnseeecrirerireens | 5,975 3,604 4,784
Income |(loss) before income tax benefit and J
equity in undistributed earnings of Bank .. .o 2,815 1,797 (625) |

Income|tax benefit .......ocovvviiiiiiiirnes ! . 2,296 1,840 2,393

Equlty in undistributed earnings of Bank ........ | ITUROB 26,582 27,852 24,115 l\

NEL NCOMIE 1orrverorvervecrssrseeeesssnssvessssnnsiesssssosseseoonsscsesnsssmmssssss $31,693 $31,489 $25,883 ;|

| .
Condensed{Statements of Cash Flows |
’ : Year Ended December 31, '
1 ‘ 2006 2005 2004 .
l ' {Dellars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating actlvmes f |
Net TTLCOITIE 1eoereverevesereeesssnnnedesinsnsneeessse M uraesessieeeesresinrreaes $31,693 $31,489 $25,883 j
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nét cash : ‘ \

provided by operating activities: | _

Depreciation and amortization ... - - 16 1

write-off of deferred debt isSuance casts .........coveeecene. - : 852
Equity in undistributed earnings of Bank ...................... (26,582) (27,852) (24,115) u
Deferred income tax benefit .............. | SRS (353) (245) (205) __
Compensation expense under stock- based ]
| cOMPENSAtion Plans .........o............ : N 865 614 258 3
Tax benefits on exercise of stock OPHONS ......cvrreccecrnnnne. (880} (1,864) (2,397) i
Changes in assets and liabilities: " s
OLNET ASSELS cuevvvreeiieereeeeeerrersi et ernssesire s et (1,675) (44) (79) w
Other liabilities ........c....oc.eereuneens OO (847) 3,630 3,516 '

Net cash provided by operating activities ..... ! ST 2,221 5,728 3,729 !I

Cash flows from investing activities: [ {
Purchase of premises and equipment....] f ............................. - (1,853) - ]
Cash paid for bank charter intangible .%o - - (239) .
Purchase of other INVeStMents ...........cc.hucvvvveieenrrvcinnnn, (1,000) - (1,000) |
Cash paid for interest in unconsolidatedTrusts ............o...... (619) - (464) ‘

Proceeds from liquidation of mvestment[m Ozark I ............. - - 534 I
Equity contributed to Bank .................. O (10,000) - -
Net cash used by investing activities ........... ) TR (11,619) (1,853) (1,169) i
Cash/flows from ﬁnancmg actlvmes u '
Proceeds from exercise of stock optionsY.......occoovvivreiainnne 824 974 977 i
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated{debentures............ 20,619 - 15,464
Repayment of subordinated debenturesl - - (17,784)
Tax benefits on exercise of stock options 880 1,864 2,397
Cash dividends paid (6,684) {6,151) (4,914)
Net cash provided (used) by ﬁnancmg ACHIVILIES .vveerneviirineeeeine 15,639 (3,313) (3,860)
Net increase (decrease) in cash .................. TR 6,241 562 (1,300)
Cash beginning of year.............. DOTUURTRUTUNN . SUOOUPOUTOTROR 25,436 24,874 26,174 -
Cash - end Of YEAT..o..ovvrvveveersns s b, $31,677 $25,436 $24,874 ;i
|




‘In Mémo}f.j/ qu Porter Hillard

Everlyone within the Bank of the
Ozarks orgamzanon laments the
passing of Porter Hillard, a remarkable
individual who served asa member
of the Board of Directors of Bank of
the Ozarks Inc. and its predecessors
for 3¢ years. His leadershlpland vision
on our Board were mstrumenta] in guiding our
Company from- assets of less than $10 million
when he joined the board to $2.5 billion in 2006.

Mr. Hillard's passnr!lg in April 2006 llwas a
time of both sadness!and celebration as we
remembered a 11ch full life that touched
countless numbers of people. You could always
count on Mr. Hillard to offer kind words and
valuable wisdom: He was known as a|wise
and loyal man who dldn t quickly Judge
He employed a pat1ent and common sense
approach that allowed him to study an issue,
situation or mdmdual before reaching a
judgment. People apprecnated that about
Porter Hillard, and l’llS values have had a
positive influence on those who had the
pleasure of knowmg him.

Mr. Hillard called Oizark Arkansas home
his entire life. Ozark Arkansas is also|one of
the original communmes served by Bank of the
Ozarks. In December 2006, Bank of the Ozarks
relocated its mam|reta11 banking facility in
Ozark to a new, state of—the art building.
At his final board meetmg in February|2006
Mr. Hillard was presented a proclamation
declaring that the new banking facnhty]m Ozark
would be named the “Porter Hillard Banking
Center,” a fitting tr1bute for an Ozark natlve
whose impact on this Company can now be
visibly recognized forever.

We will miss Porter HIIlard and his brilliant
guidance as a Dir ector of our Company‘Hls
influence will long 'be felt and his presence
will be long remembered.




BANqufthe OZARKS; Inc.

Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors’ outstanding |
leadership and vision has moved thef
Company forward and created a solid

foundation for strong future g’(owth‘l

and profitability. In 2006, we added

tan Arnof to our Board of Directors.|

Mr. Arnof joins a board strong in;
character, wisdom and purpose.
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Back row, left to right:

John Mills
Chairman and Chigf Executive Qfficer - Affiliated Foods Southwest, Inc., Little Rock, Arkansas

James Matthews
Executive Vice President - General Properries, Inc., North Little Rock, Arkansas

Jean Arehart

Retired Banker, Newport, Arkansas

Henry Mariani

Owner, Chairman and Chigf Executive Offfcer - NLC Products, Inc., Little Rock, Arkansas

Ian Armof
Retired Chigf Executive Qfficer - First Commerce Corporation, New Orieans, Louistana

Robert Trevino
Commissioner of Arkansas Rehabilitation Services, Little Rock, Arkansas

Robert East
Chairman and Chigf Executive Qfficer - Fase-Harding, Inc., Little Rock, Arkansas

Kennith Smith
Retired Lumber Company President, Ozark, Arkansas

R.L. Qualls
Retired President and Chigf Exvecutive Qfficer - Baldor Electric Company, Fort Smith, Arkansas

Front row, lgft to right:

Steven Arnold
Senior Pastor - St. Mark Baptist Church, Little Rock, Arkansas

Richard Cisne
Founding Partner - Hudson, Cisne & Co., LLF, Little Rock, Arkansas

George Gleason
Chairman and Chigf Executive Qfficer - Bank gf the Ozarks, inc., Little Rock, Arkansas

Mark Ross
Vice Chairman, Prestdent and Chigf Operating Qfficer - Bank of the Ozarks, Inc., Little Rock, Arkansas

Linda Gleason
Retired Banker, Little Rock, Arkansas
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